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ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

JOHN M. FORMELLA JAMES T. BOFFETTI

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

October 13, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to amend an existing subgrant retroactive to
September 30, 2023, with Waypoint, Manchester, NH (Vendor #177166, Purchase Order
#1078016, $626,089), approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January 22, 2021,
Item # 130, by extending the end date only from September 30, 2023 to September 30, 2024 for
the purpose of partnering with the NH Department of Corrections Family Connections Center
(FCC), to enhance programs that strengthen the bond between New Hampshire incarcerated
parents and their minor children, effective upon approval of the Governor and Executive
Council. No additional funds are involved in this time extension. 100% Federal Funds.

EXPLANATION

This item is retroactive because the amendment process was not completed in time to
meet a Governor and Council meeting prior to September 30, 2023.

The purpose of the US Department of Justice, Office on Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention, Second Chance Act Addressing the Needs of Incarcerated Parents with Minor
Children Grant (COIP) for this project is to develop programs to focus on positive interactions
between incarcerated parents and their minor children. The concept of the COIP program is that
enhancing and maintaining family connections will reduce the likelihood that children will
display risky behaviors and future involvement with the juvenile justice system. This program
uses a Two-Generation approach to build family wellbeing by supporting the child-parent
relationship.

For incarcerated parents, the project intends to increase positive parent-child interactions
and strengthen parenting responsibilities, after release from incarceration, through the family re-
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entry programming. This program reduces the likelihood of an unsuccessful transition, anti
social behavior, and recidivism.

For children, the project seeks to provide increased access to programs that mitigate the
harm on brain development caused by traumatic events, by providing clinical support when
needed. Through the NH Department of Corrections' Family Connection Center (FCC), children
will benefit from increased protective factors, decreased isolation, and programs that provide
custodial caregivers the skills needed to provide a healthy environment for children
development.

This request will allow Waypoint to continue program initiatives.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted.

John M. Formella

Attorney General

#4226956



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIBJE

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND WAYPOINT

1st GRANT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

This Amendment ("Amendment") is by and between the NH Department of Justice and
Waypoint (Subrecipient).

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Grant Agreement ("Agreement"), the sum limitation of $626,089 for
sei-vices required upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement, and in consideration
ofpayment by the Department of Justice ofceruin sums specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 20; AMENDMENT, This Agreement may
be amended, waived or discharged by written instalment executed by the parties thereto and only
after approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the Stale
of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS, the Subrecipient and the Department of Justice have agreed to amend the
Agreement in certain aspects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Agreement, and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement

Delete, in its entirety, EXHIBIT B, paragraph 3a. and 4., and replace therein as follows:

3a. The Subrecipinet shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $626,089 of the total
Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval to 9/30/2024. with approved
expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and
program performance.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs
incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after
09/30/2024.

2. Effective Date of Amendment

a. This Amendment shall take effect upon Governor and Council approval.

3. Continuance of Agreement
a. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this

Amendment the Agreement and the obligations of the parties hereunder, shall remain
in full force and effect with the terms and conditions det forth herein. IN WITNESS
WHEREOF, the parties set their hand as of the day and year first above written.
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Waypc/int I o i i. / c Date

AaM£iuLtu C&AA. ' 08/29/2023
Kathleen B. Carr Date
Director of Administration

Approved by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

Z^utu::.a^ /!. September 29, 2023
Attorney Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire,, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914.1 fijithcr certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number: 0006222798
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of May A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



WAYPOINT
Kelp Along the Way

CHrtO AND FAMILY S€RVIC£S

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, MARK C. ROUVALIS, Board Chair, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT.

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Agency duly held on 12/4/18:

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, and any of its
agencies or departments.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into
the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO of the Agency.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the
corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Date ' Mark C. Rouvalis



/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATE(MM/DOATYY)

08/16A2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

gojJTACT Stephanie Peffer

F.,- (603) 669-3218 (603) 64S4331

AiMMESS' f"anch.certs@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC 1

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Waypoint

Po Box 448

Manchester NH 03105

INSURERS Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C Travelers Cas. & Surety Co of America 31194

INSURER 0

INSURERS

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 All w/prof REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF
(MM/ooftnnnn

POUCVEXP
(MM/DOjYYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE

AUUL

INSO

5UBR

WVD POLICY NUMBER LIMITS
TFISfT
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE I X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RERTED
PREMISES (Ea occufmoca)

PHPK2570618 07/01/2023 07/01/2024

MED EXP (Any ooa perrcn)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

PRO
JECTPOLICY JECT n "-OC

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER- Professional Liability

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

Each Incident S1M

1,000.000

100,000

5.000

1.000.000

3,000.000

3,000,000

$ 3,000,000-agg

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea >cchteni)

S 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per penon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2570610 07/01/2023 07/01/2024 BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
4.000.000

PHU8869967 07/01/2023 07/01/2024
AGGREGATE

4.000.000

DED |X RETENTION t ^0-000 Umb includes Prof Liab

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS LIABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MartdaloiY In NH)
11 yet. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

OTH
ER

0 HCHS20230000576 (3a.) NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

Fidelity & Forgery
105912196 04/01/2021 04/01/2024

Limit

Deductible

$500,000

$500

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddKionel Remarks Schedule, may be anached If more space It required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Justice

33 Capitol Street

Ckincord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. AN rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



ATTORNEY GENERAltpl8'20 Pril2:57 RCMD
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 135

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD
ATTORNEY GEKERAJL.

JANE E. YOUNG

DBPUTV ATTORNEY GENERAL

December 9,2020

The Honorable Ken Weyler, Chairman

Fiscal Committee of the General Court

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Pursuant to RSA 14:30-a, VI, authorize the NH Department of Justice (DOJ) to accept and
expend a grant in the amount of $628,472, from the US Department of Justice, Office of
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, Second Chance Act Addressing the Needs of
Incarcerated Parents with Minor Children Grant (COIP), for the purpose of providing
Waypoint the funding to partner with the NH Department of Corrections, Family Connection
Center, to enhance programs that strengUien the bond between New Hampshire incarcerated
parents and their minor children effective upon the approvals of the Fiscal Committee of the
General Court and Govemor and Executive Council through June 30,2021. 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds arc to be budgeted in account #02-20-20-201510rl 188, Department of Justice,
Grants Administration, Family Connection Project as follows:

Class/Expense Class Title

072-509073 Grants-Federal

Current

SFY 2021

Budget

$0

Increase

Amount

$628,472

Revised

SFY 2021

Budget

$628,472

Total ■ $0 $628,472 $628,472

Source of Funds

000-400338 Federal Funds ■ $0 $628,472 $628,472

Tolephon« 603-271-3606 • FAX 603-271-2110 TDD Acce««: Relay NH 1-600-730-2664
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2. Upon approval of Requested Action #7, authorize the NH Department of Justice (DOJ) to
enter into a subgrant with Waypoint, Manchester NH (Vendor #177166) in an amount not to
exceed $626,089, from the US Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention, Second Chance Act Addressing the Needs of Inc^cerated Parents
with Minor Children Grant (COIP) for the purpose of partnering with the Department of
CorTections, Family Connection Center, to enhance programs that strengthen the bond
between New Hampshire incarcerated parents and their minor children effective upon the
approval of the Governor and Executive Council through September 30, 2023.

Funding is available as follows:

02-20-20-201510-1188' FY 2021
Family Connection Project
072-509073, Grants-Federal $626,089

EXPLANATION

The COIP Grant focuses on providing funds to develop programs focused on positive
interactions between incarcerated parents and their minor children. The approval of Requested
Action #/, to accept and expend the COIP Grant, will allow DOJ to subcontract with Waypoint
(formerly Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, New Hampshire Children's Aid
Society and New Hampshire Children's Aid & Protective Society). Waypoint will partner with
the Department of Corrections, Family Connection Center, to develop and implement The
Family Ties Inside and Out (FTIO) Project which focuses on the relationship between
incarcerated parent and child. These fimds were not previously budgeted because the grants
were awarded on a competitive basis with no guarantee that New Hampshire would receive an
award.

The concept of the COIP program is that enhancing and maintaining family connections
reduces the likelihood that children will display risky behaviors and future involvement with the
juvenile justice system. This program uses a Two-Generation approach to build family well-
being by supporting the child-parent relationship. For incarcerated parents, the project intends to
increase positive parent-child interactions and strengthen parenting responsibilities, after release
from incarceration, through the family in re-entry programming. This program reduces the
likelihood of an unsuccessful transition, anti-social behavior, and recidivism.

For children, the project seeks to provide increased access to programs that mitigate the
harm on brain development, caused by traumatic events, by providing clinical support when
needed. Through the Family Resource Centers, children will benefit from increased protective
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factors, decreased isolation, and programs that provide custodial caregivers the skills needed to
provide a healthy environment for child development.

The ftmds budgeted to support the activities are as follows:

Class 072-Grants Federal to subcontract to Waypoint to work with the Department of
Corrections to develop and implement a program which focuses on the relationship between
incarcerated parents and their minor children.

Approval of Requested Action #2 will allow Waypoint to partner with the Department of
Corrections, Family Connections Center (FCC), Family Ties, and nine Family Resource Centers
throughout the stale to strengthen and expand a coordinated system of programs and services that
meet the needs of incarcerated parents, their children, and custodial caregivers during the period
of incarceration. Waypoint will implement FTIO to provide staff training at all locations,
develop safety policies for child visitation," add re-entry staff at FCC to increase the number of
parent-child contacts, and increase pre-release (re-entry) planning and engagement with families.
In addition, Waypoint will work with Family Ties to provide therapeutic services to the most
vulnerable children including family therapy and coping skills. Waypoint will also implement a
referral mechanism to connect care-giving families to Family Resource Centers for support,
resources, and skill building in order to maintain healthy child development.

Services will be delivered where parent/child visitations take place; specifically the
Berlin Men*s Prison, Concord Men's Prison, and Concord Women's Prison. Assistance will also
be given to Family Resource Centers in Antrim, Peterborough, Gorham, Claremont, Portsmouth,
Laconia, Manchester, Nashua, and Concord. Referrals for clients needing therapeutic services .
will be coordinated across the State by Family Ties.

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Thank you for
your consideration of this request.

Respectfully submitted,

lordgfl J. MacDoneild

Attorney General ■'

#2951350 r



Department of Justice

GRANTS FISCAL SITUATION-FISCAL YEAR 2021

02-20-20-201510-1188 Family Connection Project

Total Agency Authorization
Less Expenditures to 06/30/2020
Remaining Authorization to Budget

Less Current Budget Authorization
Total Available for Budgeting

Available to Budget at Later Date

REQUESTED ACTION

s 628,472

$ -

$ 628,472

$ .

$ 628,472

s

$ 628,472

Award

Grant Award Number Amount Expenses to 06/30/2020 Balance
2020-IG-BX-0002 $ 628.472 $ - $ 628.472



Dcpartmenl of Justice (OOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Omcc of Juvenile Justice and

Detinquency Prevention
Grant

PACE 1 OF 14

1. RECIPIENT NAME AND ADDRESS (lAchtdii^ Zip Cede)

New Htmptbtre DepertmcM of iustiee
}) Cviiol Sotei
Ceiie0rd.NHOI3OI-«}IO

4. AWARD NUMBER: 2020-10-8X4002

J. PROJECT PERIOD: FROM IO«U2020 TO 09/30/2023

BUDGET PERIOD: FROM 10/01/2020 TO 09/3IV3023

6. AWARD DATE 7. ACTION

InidslIt. CRANTEEIRSAWDOR NO.

03M0MII

1. SUPPLEMENT NUMBER

00

3b. ORANTee OUN3 NO.

C0t59l127
9. PREVIOUS AWARD AMOUNT $0

3, PROJECT rmlE

TIn Ftiailjr Tei laside ̂  Pre^
fO. AMOUNT OFTinS AWARD S62I.472

Il.TOTALAWARD S62i:472

12. SPEOAL CONWTIONS

THE ABOVE GRANT PROJEtTT IS APPROVED SUBJECT TO SUOI CONOmONS OR UMITATIONS AS ARE SET FORTH
ON THE ATTACHED PAGE(S).

IJ. STATUTORY AUTHORITY FOR GRANT

Tlut project is supported under PY}0(OiJDP • Sccend Otanec Aci AdibcssiBg ibe Needs of laurecrved Pwotts widt HtaorOiildKa • COIP)Piib. L. No. 116-
93.1)3 Sat. 2317.240*

14 . CATALOG OF DOMESTIC FEDERAL ASSISTANCE (CFDA Ntoite)

16.131 • Cbil^si of Ineucented PaieBts

IJ.METHODOF PAYMENT f

GPRS

AGENCY APPROVAL GRANTEE ACCEPTANCE

16. TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPROVING OFFIOAL

KiUheriae T. SttUivtn

Priacipal Deputy Asiistira Adoney Gcaetel

II. TYPED NAME AND TITU OF AUTHORIZED ORANTEE OFFIOAL

KatSleoi Cerr
Difteior ef AtomitaedoA

17. SIGNATURE OF APPROVING OFnOAL 19. SIONATURJE OF AUTHORJZED RECIPlETfT OFFIOAL I9A.0ATE

)l/IS/2020

20. ACCOUNTING CLASSinCATION CODES

FISCAL FUND BUD. DIV.
YEAR CODE ACT. OfC REG. SUB. POMS AMOUNT

X  B IG 70 00 . 00 62t472

21. VIGTGT0I49

FORM «00(V2 (REV. 5<t7) PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE.

OiR FORM tOOOfi (REV. 441)



Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs AWARD CONTINUATION

Onicc of Juveaile Justice and SHEET PAGE 2 OF M

Delinquency Prevention Grant

PROJECT FAhrfBER 202IMG-eX-0002 AWARJ3 DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. Requirements of the twsrd; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award arc material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalfof the recipieru thai relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice (*DOJ*) may determine that it wilt
not enforce, or enforce only in pan, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, arc (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the OfTicc of Justice Programs (*OJP*) wcbpage cniklcd 'Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions* (ojp.gov/funding/^plore/LegalNoticcs-AwardReqts.hlm). and

. incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authoriacd recipient olTicial accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized rccipieni officiaJ, all
assurances orcenificaiions submitted by oron bchalfofthe rccipkni thai relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements - whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -• may
result in OJP t^ing appropriate aaion with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate pic award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other legal
action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement lo the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. I027I-10273). and also may lead lo imposition of civil penalties and administrslive remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801*3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum efTect permitted by law. Should it be
held, instead, thai the provision is uncrly invalid or •unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from (his
award.

OJP.FOItM 4000/2 (REV. a-IS)

KC 11/18/20



Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs AWARD CONTINUATION

Onice of Juveoile Justice and SHEET PACE J OF 14

Delinquency Prevention Grant

PROJECT NUMBER 2020-tC-BX-0002 AWARD DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

2. An>licability or Pan 200 Uniform Rcquircmcnu

The Uniform Administniive Requircmenu, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (tofcihcr, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements') apply to this FY
2020 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,2014. (fthis FY 2020 award
supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before
December 2014), the Part 20O Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award number
(regardless of the award date..and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that
are obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2020 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and subawards
('subgrants'), see the OJP website at hnp$://ojp.gov/fundin^art200UnifoTmRequ!refnenis.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ('subgrantee') at .
any tier) must retain ~ typicaJly for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention perii^ applies - and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ('subgrantee') at
any tier) must provide access, include peiformancc measurement information, in addition to tlK financial records,
supporting documents, statistical recoil, and other penincni records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

In the event thai an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Pan 200 Uniform R^uiremenis, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for ciarification.

3. CompliaiKC with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Giiidc are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the 'DOJ Grants Financial Guide* available at https://ojp.gov/nnancialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any-
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

4. Reclassincation of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September I, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassificd (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled 'Crime Control and Law Enforcement.* The
rcclassiricaiion encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1,2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision thai has been
reciassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference lo that sututory provision as reciossified to
Title 34. Thb rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requiicments.

0;p FORM 4000.^ (REV. 4.U)
KC 11/18/20
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PROJECT NUMBER 2020.IC-BX-0002 AWARD DATE

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

5. Required training for Point of Contact and ail Financial Points of Contact

Both the Point ofContact (POC) and all Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) for this award must have successfully
completed an *OJP financial management and grant administration training* by 120 days after the date of the
tecfpleni'f acoepuncc of (he award. Successful compiction of such a training on or after January I, 20 tt. will saiisry
this condition.

In the event that either the POC or an FPOC for this award changes during the period of perfonnance, the new POC or
FPOC must-have successftilly completed on *OJP financiid management and grant administration training* by 120
calendar days after - (I) the date ofOJP's approval of the 'Change Ortniee Contact* CAN {in case of a new
POC), or (2) the date the POC enters information on the new FPOC in CMS (in the case of a new FPOC). Successful
completion of such a training on or after January 1,2018, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider *OJP financial tnanagemcnt and grant administration training* for
purposes of this condition is available at hnp$yAvww.ojp.govAraining/rmis.him. All trainings that satisfy this cotidition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immcdiaicly withhold Cfrceze") award funds if the recipient fails to
comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate
conditions on this award.

6. Requirements related to 'de minlmts* indirect cost rate

A-recipicnt that is eligible under (he Pan 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the *de minimis'
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(0. and that elects to use the *dc minimis* indirect cost rate, must advise
OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200
Uniform Requirements. The 'de minimis' rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Unifonn Requirements.

7. RequirctTKni to report potentially duplicalivc funding

I f the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
fujtds during the period of performance for (his award, (he recipient promptly must.detcrmine whether funds from any
of those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in w^le or in put) for one or more of the
identical cost items for which funds arc provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ
awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and. if so requested by (he DOJ
awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-projea-scope grant adjustment notice (OAN) to
eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.

oir FORM 4ooev2 (rev. *-n)
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8. Requirements relcted to System for Award Manasctncni and Universal Identirier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applieable requirements rceardtng the System for Award" Management (SAM),
currently accessible at https:/Avwwjam.gov/. The incltKks applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM,
as well as meinuinlng the currency of intbtmation in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgiants*) to first-tier subrecipients
(first-tier 'subgrantces*), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the
recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations rclaicd to SAM and to unique entity ideniificrs arc posted on the OJP web site
at hnps://ojp.gov/rundjng/Explore/SAM.htm (Awttrd condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by refaence here.

This condition docs not apply to an award to an sndividusl who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to
any busiiKSs or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).
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9. Employment eligibility venfication for hiring under (he sward

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) musi-

A. Ensure thai, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will tte funded (in whole

or in part) whh award funds, the rccipicitt (or any subrecipient) property verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with (he provisions oft U.S.C. i324a(a)(l) and (2).

B. Notify alt persons associated with (he recipient (or any subrecipicni) wtw are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both-

(1) (his award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in t U.S.C. 1324a(aKl) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in Uw United
States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain ilicitt.

C. Provide training (to (he extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibiltry verification and of (he associated provisions of S U.S.C. 1324a(aXI) artd (2).

D. As pan of the rccordkccping for the award (including pursuant to (he Pan 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verificatioRS pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as wdt as records of all pertinent notifications end trainings.

2. Moniloring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities inclixk monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs arc not reimbursed under any otho federal program, award funds may be obligated for (he
reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actiorts designed to ensure compliance with (his condition.

4. Rules of constfuaion

A. Staffinvolvcd in (he hiring process

For purposes of (his condition, persons 'who are or will be involved in activities under this award* specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other suff who arc or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

8. Employment eligibility confirmation with £•Verify

For purposes of satisfying the re<)uirement of this cortdition regarding vcrificalion of employrocnl eligibility, the
recipient (or any stdHccipieni) may choose to psrttcipale in, and use. E<Verify (www.c*vcrify.gov). provided an
appropriate person authorized to act on behalf of (he recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper
E-Verify procedures, including in tJic event of a "Tcnlalivc Nonconfirmation' or a 'Final Noflconftrmation') to
confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States dial is or will be funded (in whole or
in pan) with award funds.

C. 'United States* specifically includes the District ofCohunbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of (he United
States, and the Commonwealth of (he Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any Sidirccipient at any tier, or

OJF FOXAt 4000n (KEY. 44S)
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any person or other entity, to violaie any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or iKxtdiscrimination law.

E Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B.. shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tio. or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including i U.S.C. I3248(bXI)
and (2).

Questions abcwt E-Vcrify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verily visk the E-Verify
website (hnp$7/www.e-vcrify.gov/) or email E-Vcrify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-
Verily at E-VerifyEmploycrAgcnt@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

10. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of pcrsonaJly identifiable information (Pi!)

The recipient (and any 'subrecipient* at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent 'breach* (OMB M-I7-I2) if it (or a subrecipient) - (I) creates, collecu, uses, prDcesscs. stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of'personally identifiable information (PII)' (2 Cni 200.79) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or actrvity. or (2) uses or operates a 'Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requtrement to report actual or imminent breach of
Pj] to an OJP Program Managa no later than 24 hours aOer an occurrence of en aauaJ breach, or the detection of en
imminent breach.

1 i. All subawards ('subgrants') must have specific federal authorization

The recipient; and tiny subrccipicni ("subgranice*) at^any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
euihorizaJionofany subaward. This condition applies to egreciiKnts that - for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements — OJP considers a 'subaward* (and therefore does not consider a procurement
■contraa*). '

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at
hnp$://<:9P.80v/funding/Explore/Sub8wardAwhori2aiion.htm (Award condition:' AM subawards Csubgranis') must have
specific federal authorization), and arc incorporated by reference here.

12. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompelitivc approach in any procurement conlract that would
exceed 5250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ('subfirantec*) at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obttin
spcdfic advance approval to use a noncompelitivc approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currcnUy, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements - DIP considers a procurement 'contraa" (and therefore docs not consider
a subaward)-

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a nonoompaitive approach in a procurement contraa under
an OJP award are posted on (he OJP web site it haps-iA)jp.gov/runding/Expiofc/NofKompctiliveProeurcinent.htm
(Award condition; Speeific post-award approval required to use a noncompetUive approach in a proeuremeni contraa
(if contraa would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by itfeitnce here.

OJF FORM *000n <R£V. 4.a)
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13. Unreasonable rdlrictions on competition under (he award; association with federal govcmmeni

SCOPE. This condiiioo applies with respea to any procurement of property or services that is funded (in whok or in
part) by this award, whetlwr by the recipient or by any subrccipient at any tier, and regardless of the dollar amount of
the purchase or ocquistlion, the method of procurement, or the nature of any legal irutrumcnt used. The provisions of
this condition must be among those included in any subaward (ai any tier). «

1. No disoifflinaiion. in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal government

Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements •> including as set out at 2 C.F.R. 200.300 (requiring
awards to be 'man8gc[d] and administerledjiin a manner so as to ensure that Federal funding is expended and
associated programs luc implemented in full accordance with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements') and
200.319(a) (generally requiring '(#111 procureineni iransaaions (to] be conducted in a manner providing full and open
competition* and foitidding practices 'rcsiriaivc of competUioa.* such as "(pjlacing unreasonable requirements on
firms in order for them to qualify to do business' and (iking "(a)ny arbitrary action in the procurement process*) - no
recipient (or subrccipieni, at any tier) may (in any procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on
the basb of such person or entity's status as an •associate of the federal government* (or on the basis of such person or
entity's status as a parent, efTiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 C.F.R.-
200J 19(a) or.as specifically authorized by USDOJ.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrccipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent (hat such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for the
reasonable, necessary, and aJlocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. The term 'associate of the federal govemmeitf* means any person or entity engaged or employed (in the past or at
present) by or on behalf of the federal government - as an employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant
recipient or -subrecipiem (at any tier), ̂ cnt. or otherwise - in undertaking any work, project, or activity for w on
behalf of (or in providing goods or services to oron behalfof) the federal govemrrKnt, and includes any applicant for
such employment or cngagemenl, and any person or entity committed by legal instrument to undertake any such work,
project, or activity (or to provide such goods or services) in fuiure.-

-  B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrccipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

CUP FORM 4000rz (REV. 4^)
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14. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafTicking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP auUtoriiy to terminate award)

The r^tpient, atiid any subrectpicnt ('subgrantce') at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
rcquirnnenu (o report allegations) penaining to prohibited conduct related to the traTTicking of persons, whether on the

pan of recipients, subrecipienls ('subgrantees*), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as 'employees*
of the recipient or of any subrecipicnt.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafTicking in persons are posted on tJte
OJP web site at hnps://o;p.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduci-Trafricking.htm (Award condition; Prohibited
cortduci by recipients and subrecipienls related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP'
authority to terminate award)), and arc incorporated by reference here.

15. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The ricipicni, and any subrtcipknl ('sul^rantcc') si any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,,
policia. and official CX)J guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applic^le) governing the use of federal ihsnds for expenses related to conferences (as (hat term is defined by OOJ),
induding the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of ancndincc at such conferences.

i

Infomiation on the peilinent DOJ definition of conferences and (he rules applicable to this award appears in the OOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of 'Postaward Requirements' in the 'DOJ Grants Financial Guide*).

16. Requirement for data on performance and cfTccliveness under the award

The recipient must collcci and maintain data thai measure the performance and cfrectivcncss of work under this award.
The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including witJiin the timeOames) specified by OJP in (he program
solicitation or othn applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modemizaiion Act of 2010. and other applicable laws.

17. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any (raining or training-materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ('subgrantee') at wy tier - develops or
delivcn with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees.
available at httpsy/ojp.gov/funding/lmplcment/TrainingPrinciplcsForGrantees-Subgranlces.hUii.

18. Effect of failure to address audit issues ■

The recipient understands and agrees that (Jk OOJ awarding agency (QJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose Other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of thb award), or other outstanding issues that arise in conneaion with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees lo comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as 'high*
risk' for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

Ojr FORM 4«0M (REV. AOS)
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20. Compliance wUJi DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscriminaiion • 28 C.F.R. Pan 42

The recipient, and any subreeipicm CsubgrBntce") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Pan 42, specifscally including any applicable requirements in Subpan E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
aqua) employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nortdiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part $4

The recipiem, and any subrccipient ('subgrantce') at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Pan 54, which relates to nondiscriminaiion on the basis of sex in certain 'education programs.*

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nortdiscrimination • 28 C.F.R. Pan 38

The lecipicni, and any subrecipient ('subgrantce') at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically including any applicable requiremcnu regarding
written noticC'lo program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Pan 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the
basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to ancnd or participate in a religious
practice. Part 38. cuncnliy, also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrceipknl
('subgrantee') organizations that engage in or condua explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements
that pertain to recipients and subrecipicnts that are faith-based or religious organtzaiions.

The text of28 C.F.R. Pan 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible at
http$://www.ccfr.gov/cgi-biir^CFR?page«brow$e), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter I, Part
38. under e-CFR 'current* data.

23. Restrictions on'lobbying*

In general, as a maner of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrccipient ('subgrantce') at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modificaiion. or adoption of any law.rcgulaiion, or policy.atany level of government. See I8U.S.C. 1913. (There
may be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be
barred by law.)

Anoclter federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by tire recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agenQ^. a Member of
Congrcss, ,or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
coc^icrativc agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewir^ extending,
or modifying any such award. Sec31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception that
applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federaJ funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior wrinen approval of OJP.

OJP FORM 400W7 (REV. 441]
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24. Compliance with gcnerti «ppcopftatiofis-taw rcsuictions on ihe use of ftdersl funds (FY 2020) The reapknt, «od any .•
subiecipieni ('subgrantee') at «ty tier, must comply with all applicable rtstriaions onihc use of redcnl funds set out in
federal appropriations statutes. Pcnincnl restrictions that may be set out in applicable appropriations acts arc indicated
at htlps;//ojp.gov/funding/Explorc/FY20ApproprialionsRcstriaiorts.htm. and arc incorporated by reference here. Should
a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall
within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the rccipienl is to contact OiP for guidance, and may not proceed
without the express prior written approval of OJP.

23. Rcponing potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrccipients ('subgranices') at any tier, must prorhpily refer to the CX3J OfTicc of the Inspector
General (010) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in coitnection with funds urtder (his award- (i) submitted a claim thai violates (he False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gramity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by-<l) online submission accessible via the 010 webpage at https.7/oig.justice.gov/hoiiinc/ccniaci-grants.him
(select 'Submit Repon Online'); (2) mail directed to; U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATfN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington. DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attm Grantee Rcponing) at (202) 6I6-98S1 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG websile at https7/oig.justice.gov/hoiline.

OiP FOfiM 4000/2 (REV. 4-11)
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26. Restrictions tnd certiricetions regsrdiQg non-disclosure egreements end rclsted mancrs

No recipient or subrccipieni ('subgrentee*) under this evrard, or entity that receives • procuretncnl contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign en internal conndemiality
agreement or statement (hat prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
departriKnt or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing b not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to coninvcnc
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified informaiion), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented Information), or any other form issued by a federal depirtmcnt or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting thb award, the rccipioM-

a. represents thai It neither requires nor has required Internal confidentiality agreements or staiemcrus from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise cufrcntly.rcsirici (or purport lo prohibit or restrict) employees or
contracton from repotting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certincs that, if it leams or b notiFied that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibtl or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt
written notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO Fuch
obligations only If expressly authorized to do so'by'ihai agency.

2. If the recipient docs or Is authorized under this award to make subawards ('subgrants'), procurement contracts, or
both- .

. a. it represents thai-

(1) it has determined (hat no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaword ('subgrani'), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) citho^
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
pn^ibil Of otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from repotting waste,
fiaud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basb, to support thb representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it Icamsor is notified that any subrecipieni, eonirsaor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award b or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit
or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt wriaen notification to
the federal agency nuking thb award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.
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27. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice lo employees)

The recipient (and any subrccipicnt at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 4 i
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal fbr the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagemeni of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a subsianiial and specific danger to public
health or safety, ora violaiion of law. ruk, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The redpiciu also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C.47I2.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ avrarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

2S. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,* 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1,2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipicnts ("subgranices") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicleduring the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk' by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currcnlly or at any lime
during the course of the period of performance under this awanL the recipient must disclose thai fact and certain related
information to OJP by email at OJP.Complianc<Reporting@ojp.u$doJ.gov. Foe purposes of this disclosure, high risk
iftcludes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipicrtt. The recipient's disclosure must include
the following: I. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipieni high risk. 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

30. The recipient threes to submit a ftnal report at the end of this award documenting all relevant projeo activities during
the entire period ofsuppon uttder this award. This report will include detailed information about the project(s) funded,
including, but not limited to. information about how the funds were actually used for each purpose area, data to support
statements of progress, and data eonceming individual results and outcomes of funded projects reflecting project
successes and impacts. The final report is due no later than 90 days following the close of this award period or the
expiration of any extension periods. This report will be submitted to the Office of Justice Programs, ctt-line throu^
the Internet at https://grants.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

31. The recipient shall submit semiannual progress reports. Progress reports shall be submincd within 30 days after the end
of the reporting periods, which are June 30 and December 31, for (he life of the award. These reports will be submitted
to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line through the Imcmet it htips://grant$.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

32. The recipient agrees to report data on the grantee's OJJDP-approved performance measures as part of the semi-annual
categorical progress report. This data will be submitted on line at OJJDP's Performance Measures website
(hnps://qijdp.gov/graniccs/pm/iRdex.htmt) by July 31 and January 3 i each year for the duration of the award. OtKe data
entry is complete, the grantee will be able to drcalc and download a "Performance Measures [Jala Report." This
document is to be included as an attachment to the grantee's narrative categorical assistance progress report submitted
in CMS for each reporting period.

Otf FORM 4<M0Q (REV. 44t)
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s:

Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office ofJustice Programs

Offtce of Juveoile Justice aad

Delioqueocy Prevcntioo

AWARD CONTINUATION

SHEET

Grant

MCE U OP 14

PROJECT WMBCR 202(MO-BX4002 AWARD DATE

SPEOAL CONOmONS

33. With cespea to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) to any
employee of the award rccipicni at a rate that exceeds I tO% of the maximum annual salary payable to a member of the
federal govcnunenl's Senior Executive Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System
for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this
compensation limitation is paiO with not>-rc^raJ t\inds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on en individual basis at the
discretion of the OJP ofTicial indicated in (he program announcement under which this award is made.

34. PFATA reporting; Subawtrds and executive compensation

The rccipicni must comply with applicable requirements to report first'iter subawards ('subgrants') ofS2S,000or
more and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the live most highly compensated
executives of (he recipient and first-tier subrecipients(nrsi-ticr*subgrantees') of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of2006 (FFATA), arc posted
on the OJP web site at htlps://ojp.gov/runding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated reference here.

This condition, including hs reporting requirement, docs not apply to- (I) an sward of less than S2S,000. or (2) an
award made to on individual who received (he award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profu
organization thai he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

35. Recipient iniegriiy and performance matters: Requirement to report information on certain civil, criminaJ, and
administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPMS

The recipient must comply with any ̂  all applicable requirements regarding reporting of information on civil,
criminal, and administnlivc proceedings connected with (or conncoed to the performance oO either this OJP award or

'  any other grant, coopentivc agreement, or procurement contract from the federel government. Under eeruin
circumstances, recipients of OJP awards are required to report information about such proceedings, through the federal
System for Award Management (known as 'SAM'), to (he designated federal integrity and performance system
(currently, "FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding (he required reporting (and updating) of informaiion on certain civil,
criminal, and administrative proceedings to the fedemi designated integrity and performance system (currently,
■RAPIIS") within SAM arc posted on the OJP web site at hitpsy/ojp^ov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS), and are incorporated by
reference here.

36. Therccipient may not obligate, expend or draw down funds until the OfTtce of the Chief Financial OfTicer (OCFO) has
approved (he budget and budget narrative and a Grant Adjustment Notice (CAN) has been issued to remove this special
condition.

OJr l=0U>4 4000/2(REV. 4.SS)
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the SubrecipienI hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PRO VISIONS

i.l. Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipicnt Name

Waypoint

1.4. Subrecipicnt Address

464, Chestnut St. Manchester NH 03105

1.5 Subrecipicnt Phone ft

603-518-4000

1.6. Account Number

11880000-072

1:7. Completion Date.

09/30/2023

I.S. Grant Limitation

826,089

1.9. Grant Officer for State'Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. Slate Agency Telephone Ij/umbcr

(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we"certify that wc hove complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance .of this grant,
incl"dii»fl ifflnnlicable RSA 31:954)."

LHr^Subrccipieiil Signature 1

Subr^^^^gnaluj^ l/A/^ficable.
M2.Nemo&TitlcofSubrecipientSighbr 1

lAJhi AMt /(^0
Name & Title of Subrecipieril Signer 2 //Applicable.

\

1.13. Acknowledgment: Stale of New Hampshire, County of
QH , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person.identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be" the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in block'.1.12.

1.13.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justicc.of the Peace

(Seal)

Mil Name & Title of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

I,r4. State Agency Slgnaturefs) MS. Name & Title of State Agency SignoKs)

1(fil£^un CoTT Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

M6. Approval by. Aliomcy General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G A C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney Ocneraj, On: / /
11/17/2020

M7. /kpproval by-Govcrhorand Council (ifapplicobic)

By: On: .1 1 '

idcntiHcd in blodc 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "thc State"), the Subrecipicnt identified in block 1.3.(here»naftcr.refcrrcd to as
*^hc $ubrccipicnt"X shall.perform that work identified.and more particularly described in the scope of work attach^ hereto as
PVHlRlT A (the scope of work being herejnaner referred to as "the Project"). ^

Subrecipiciil Initials): ytH

Date: 1| 1^0 /%!
RCT. 9/2015



3. AttrA rrtVPRKP Except o othenwjc ipeeificilly pforkW for htreih. the
Subrccipiail shall perfotra the Prejcci in. and wiA respect n. the.State ofNcw
Hampshire. r

4. rFt--Vf^Vh: DATE- COMPLETTON Of PROJECT.
4.1. This AsreenKQt.. and all ttbtigBliora of-thc (^ks-heteur^,-shali become

effective oei the dUc on the date of approval of this Atrecnent by the. Govcnw
and Cotucil of the State of New-itampihirt if required (blodc 1.17). or upon
signature by-the' State Ageney m shown in block 1.14 effective date").

4.3. Except as otlierwise spccificaliy provided herein, the Pnjeel, including all
lepons required ̂  this Agreement, shall be complMed in ITS entire^ prior to
■he in Mock 1.7 (hereinafter retcrreU lb as Ihc Gorhpietjon Oatc'>

5. fi ftAWT AMOUNT- LtMITATION ON AMQUWTr VQUaiERS: PAYMENT.
S.I. The GnM Amount is'idcniirKd and more partinilxrty docribrd ill EXHIfifT n,;

attaehed.heicio.
SJ. Thecnsnneref,andschcduleofptytn^shiUbcassct<bnhm.EXHIBITD.
Sj. In accordanoe with the provtsioia Ki forth in!EXH|firr 8, and in ermsidcration

of the salisiactary performance of d« Project, as determined by the. Stale, and as.
iimtlcd by subparsgreph S.S of ihctt.gen^-ptovisoiu, the State Ml pay the
Subreeipicia <h« Onm Aimoimu. The Suie *h»ll VithhoU from the ■mmni
Otherwise poyaUe to the Subi^icnl under this stttitaragraph SJ those sums
required, or penniucd, to be .withheld pursuimt to N.K tO:7 through 7.<.

5.4. The payment by the State of the Ornd amount shall be the-only, and the
complete payment to the Subrecipknt for ell •cxpctacs. of whatever rialure.-
tncurred by the Sttbrecipienl in the performance hereof, and shall be ihe.only.
and the. complete, compensation to the SubrecipKnt for the IVbjeqi. Tbe-StM.
shall have no jiidiililia to the Subrccipient pilKr thu die Grant Amount.

5.5. 'Notwithstanding anything, in this Agrconna to the cbntnry, and
notwithstanding iJtKxpectcd circums&»ees..in no event shall the total of all
payments authortwd, .or actualiy made, hcreinder cx^ the Orwit linitaiion
set forth'in block- I.S of-ihcsc.gcnctel proviaioni

6. COMPUAl^E BY SUBREaPlEWT Wmi LAWS AND Rl-CULATIQNS.
In connection .with the paformsnce of the. Project, the Subrccipienl Mi comply
with all. fiatuics, bws icgulaiicftt. and orders of-fcdenl, state, county, or
ihuaicipal authorities which sheU impoae' oMigations or duty upon the;
Subrccipkril, ineluding the acquiotion ofaay and all aecesBwy.pcnnits.

7. BPCQBDSnndACCrt^tJKTS.
7.1. Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion

Date the Subrecipi^ MI keep detailed accouits'of 'all expenses incoM-iri
'qormeeiien with the Project, including, but not limited to, eoto of-
■dministmiion, irtmportsion, insunmce, telephone calb.-tnd clerical materials
ami serviccx Such aeeounts shall be suppoM by reeeipts, invoiees. btlb and
other similar dtKumcnts.

7.2. Behwcn tic EfT^W Dote end tic three (3) years afta the Completion
Dale, at any time ^ng the St^recipieni's iwmisl toincss houra,-and as oAm
as the Sttte shall denueid, the Si&ceipicnt Ml make'available to the State all
recbrds.pataining to moiien covered ihb Agmcmeni. The Siibcecipicni th^l'
permit the State to audit,- examiae, and reproduce such records, md to make
audb </ all commcts, ttmiices. matcrub, payroUs; ncords of personnel, dtea'
(as thu term is hereinaftm dcQo^), and othb infoimteibR retaiii^ to all iMen
covered by thb AypemenL As used in ihis-pBnt^ph. 'Si^rccipienl'includes
all pcrabns, naltnl or fldional, aflilialcd with, contrblkd by, or undcr'coratnen
ovwiership.iyith, the entity identified as the Subrccipienl in block 1.3 of these
provbioro

8. PERSONNEl.
'8.1. The Subrrcipiert Ml, el Hs own expense, provide all personnel necessary to

perfbrm the Project. The.-SubrecipiciU warranb that all pcrsomd engaged in the
Prqjeel shsll Iw qmlirfcd to pq^onn such Proj^, rmd shall be properly licen^
and auihorM to perform su^ Project undet-ail sppliqiWe'laws.

8.3. The Subrecipicnt shall net hire, and it nea permit aay subcontractor,
•subgrintee, or. other person; firm or eorpontion with whom it b crtgiged in a'
combiikd eflbrt to perfbrio the F^jed.-to hire any pcrsnn'uho has a contnetual
relationship with cite Siala, or who b a State of&ecr v. employee, clect^ or

8.3. appotnlcd.
ThaOrant OfTicer shall be the representative of the State hocuhdef. tn the event
of a^ dispute hbcundcr,.lhe interpretation of thb Agrtctncnt by the-Ctint
OiTicer, arid hbfticr decbion on any dispute. Ml be final.

9. DATA-RFnTkniON OP DATA: ACG^:
9.1. As us^ in this Agreeneiil, the word "dau" thaft rnean til mrormalion and

.things developed or obtained 'during (he performance of. or, a^uired or
developed by reason of. thb Agieeincnl, inclining, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, Olcs, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound rceordinp, video
recordings, pictcrisi rcproduciiofts. dnivings, analjm, grepl^ representations,
computer programs, comptdcr prirlouts. notes, lettas; memoranda, papa, and
docuincms, ail whether finished or ladlnbhed.

Rev. 9/3013

9.-2. Between (he GfCectivc Oate'and the Coinpklion Date the Subrccipienl Ml
grant io the State, or any person desigtaied by it, utvestriclcd access to all rlaia
for coretnai^ duplicatkM, publicaiioo, translaiion. sale, disposal, or for any
(Xher purpose whatsoever.

9.3. No dtbi ^11 be.subjec.t to copyri^ in,the United States or any ether country by
anyone otha than the Stiue.

9.4. On and after .the Effcctiye Dale all data, tnd'any properry which to been
received Gram the.Stale or purchased \yiib Ainds preyed for that puipotc undq-
thb-AgRcmerU. Ml be ihe-propcrty of the Stale, and Ml bc.rctumcd.to the
State upon deniand or upon tcnninaiton of this .Agreement tv toy reason,
whiehcior shall first occur.

9.5. The Stile, iral anyone it shall dcstgnate.' Ml have unresbicled authority to
publish, dbclcae, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part,.all date.

10; COWnmONAL nature or AC.nmtPur. Notwilhsunding erofthing in
thb AgreeaKnl to the eemrery'; ail oMigatiora of the State hcrcsnda. ihdudin^
rviihout'limitaiion, the contihuance of pdyntcno hcmmder; are ccntingem upon
the avvlabiliry or cpminu^ appropriation of funih, arid in no event Ml the
State be liable for any peyroenis hercunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event ef a rcdqclion er termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to wiihlM paynicm taitll such huto become
•viilaMe. if ever, and 'Ml have the rigju to tcrmaiqte this Agiecrncni
immediately open giving the Stdireeipteni noriee of such Icnnimtioo.-

11. EVENT<7EDEFAm-T- REMEDIES.
I'l.l. Any-one dr more of the following acts or omissiora of the Si^ccipienl Ml

consticute an event of defndi hoeunder (hereinafter rdcrrcd to as "Tivents of.
DetaulO:

II .1.1 Failure to perform the rrqject sstisfiKlorily or on'schedule; or'
11.1.2 Failure (d submit any report herrander; or
0.1.3 Failure ut miintain, or permit access to, the records required hercunder. or
11.1.4 Failtee to perform any of ihcoihcr covenant's and conditiora ofthb Agmmenl.
I.1.2. Upon the occurrence of toy Event of Default, the State msjr take any ore, or

more, or all, of the folltmvig actions:
II.2.1 Give (he S^ccipienl a- written nntice specifying the Event of Dcfttull.and

requiring, h lo be cotKdicd wriihin, in the absence oif a. greater or lessa
specifictelon of. time, thirty (3p) 'da)-s from the ^ of the ne(iec;.8i)d-if the
Event of Dclkult b rw( tim^ nmcdied, lemintee Ihb Agrranem, efleqiiye hw
(2) days after giving (he Subrccipienl notice of terroimtren: and

I U.2 Give the Subrecipieta a- written rvotice qiecilying the Event of 'Oefiult and
suspcrtding all payments lo be made undo'(Kb Agrtcment.and ordains that the
portion of-thc Grant Amount which would odwrwiM accrue to (he Subrecipient
during the period from the drtle of such notice until 'such -lime ta the Sute
determines-that the Subrccipieiti to cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient: and

fl J.3' Set offegaM-any oM obligation (he-$(«e may owe le the Subrceiptert any
Ihc State suffcn-by reason ofany Evem of Oclautt: and

II J.4 Treat (he agrccmau as breached and pcnue any of iU reroedia -at law cr in
equity, or both.

12. TERMINATION.
12.1. btlheeveruofany early termination of thb Agreement for any rnson eito ibav

(he compldiai of the Prpjcct, the Subrccipienl shall deliva tn the Grant Ofl^.
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termirvation, a report (hcrdhafter
referred to e the Tenninstion Reporf*) describing in detail all IToject-Vtek
pcrfdrmcd. and the Grant Amount earned, to and induding the date of
iaminatkn.

I2J. In the event of Temiinatien under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these' gciKnd
prdvbkni, the approval of such a Tecmliuuion Report by the Stale shall eitiik
the Subrteipknl to receive ito potiioo of (he Grant amount earned -lo and
including the date of(cira'ination.

12.1. In the event of Tenwination lader paragraphs 10. er 12.4 of tliese genera!
provskm,' (he approval of such a Termination Report .by the State shall in no
event rtiim the Subrtcipieni Cram any end all'liability for damages sustain^ or
incuncd by the State as a result of the Subrccipkni's breadi of its oblitplio^
hocundcf.

12.4. Notwilhsunding anyiliing in thb Agreement io ^ cpntitry. eiiho the State or,
except where notice defautl to becn given to the Sidirecipieai heiciinda^ the
Subrccipknt. may terminate Ihb Aerecnknl vvithout cause upon'thirty-(30} days
writtd) rktke.

13. rONFhICT OF INTEKEST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrectpknl. and no rcprcscnlalivc, offieo or employee of (he Stale of New
Hampshire or of iKe governing body of the locality or tocalilks in wtuch the
Project b to be performed, who cxcrebes any hihctiora or responsibilities in'ihe
review or approval of the undotaking or carrying out of such Proj^, ilnll
partkipaic in any decbion iclsting to (hb Agreerhent which affects hb or her

Subrccipienl liiitial(s):

Date:



14.

IS.

i«.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

peoooal {ntotw or the iiiicfal ©f »ny co»pqrtiion. ptrtn6Thip.,wi5Jcei«lion 17.2,
if) Ke 'of tSt is diftetly or indifKJly inicf^, nw.^i he « *hc hB«
»ny petMfial Of pecwuBry inlefcst, difWt or indircci, in fhi5 Apewwnl or <Se
procnds Ihacor.
<linttFriPlENT^ RFLATIQN TO" TTIF. STATE. In'l^ perfofnunce of ihlJ .
Ajreonent iSc Subreeipicnt. it> employees, end iny mbcdnlfector or
cubiptnlee of the Subftcipien ere if) eU respects IndependenI cdnifKieirs. end IS.
mnddKrernlsnor an^loycesoftheSaie. r4et^ ibe SubrectpiefU nor iny '
of hs officers, onployxei, tgcfrts, membcn, nAcOBU^on or lubjfwtces,
shell hsve uithodty to bind the Slate nor ere they anill^ to eny of the benefits,
wortinen's compenstiioo or cmiomenis provided by ihe. State to its
employees.
aeCTfiNMEhfT ANn amcoWTRACrn. 7heS«bcteipietit d»n«essi^
or othervviM ireftsfsf eny intereji io thb Apreaienf )«thooi the prior wrmcn 19.
consent of the State. None of the Preijecl Wort stab be sid)con«led or
■ub(rw(ed by the Subreeipient other than is set.fonh.in Hxhibii A-vdlhou pie
priorwiiilen consent of State.
nrnrMNit-'iCATlbN. The Subreeipient thatl defesid: indemnify-and hold 20.
henntesi the Slate, its officen and employees, from and ajiinst any and all
(■jryt sufTered by the State, iu officers end employees, and «iy end ell eisims,iiabiUiia or penalties asserted ageiesi the State, iu officcii end employto. by
oreibcbelfof«iyp«w.-onaceeunlo<;besedon.rtsu6in8.fn*D.eiisin8eui 21.
of (or )»hich may be claimed to an* oui of) the acts or orninioio ^ the
SUbreclpieie or subcooimaor, or luhgrmlee or other accia of lhe-S«*iteipient.
Notnithstandihg the foregoing, nothing herein contaiKd shall be dcem^ to.
constltulea waiver of the sovereign immiaiiiy of (he State, which imimimty a
betcby reserved to the State. Ihis eoventrt shall suMvt the lennioatlan ed
thu-agrecmeni.
irffilfRAMCEAWnONP. ■>,
The Subrccyicri shall, as its own expense, obtam and maintain tn i^orce, or is.
sMl require any subcontract'or, subgrentee or assignee pcifotTning Projjcct
wwt to obtain and maintain in force, .both for the berKfil of the Siaia. the
following insieence:
SuRMory wnrtmen.'s corapcnstaicr airf cmployeea liebnity msursice for all 24.
em^oyccs o^igcd in the perfonnancc of the Project, and
Comprehensive public iiabiiity msurtnco egainst eO cliirm of bodily ii^o.
death or property damage, in amounis not kss than S 1^00.000 pwocomenet
and iiflOOflOO tST*"- f* bodily injury or death any one ti*ider^ end
SSOO.OOO for property damage in eny one incidcrd; end

The policies described Wi subretagraph 17,1 of this paragraph sMI be the
flsidsrd fern) employed in ilta State of Nmv.ltampsh'irt, i^ucdby undcrNvritcn
■cceptabk to ths State, and authorized to do busirKss in the State of Nmv
Haiup^c. Each policy tiall contsin a clause prohibiting cenceltation or
modirwaticn of ihe-pNicy earlier then ton (10) days efler wrillen notice thereof
has been rceetved.by the State.
WAIVER QF PBi^CR No •ftflurc by the State 10 enforce tny ptovisiofu
hereof aftta any Evcot of OcliuU shall Be deemed a waiver of its rights with
rcgvd to Event, or any suboeqtmt ErenL No exprtas waiver of any Evefa
of Default shaO be deemed a waiva of any provisions bocof. No sich failure of
waiver shaD be deemed a wtivcr ©f the rigbt.'of the State lo ciforce each and aU
of the provijioni hereof-upon nrf further or otha default oo the part of Ihe
SubrccipienL
Mfmn- Any miicc by • party her^ to the other party shall be. deemed to
have bcenidu^ ddrvtrtd or given at (he I'ime of mailtng by certified mail,
penge ptcpeid, ie.a United Slates Post Office addressed to the. panici at it* -
addre'm first above giwn. '
AMENDMENT.- This Agreemia)! may be emended, wiivei) or discharged only
by an intfrumeni h» %wiiing slgncl l>y the parties hereio and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or dbchaige' by the Covenw and Couned of the
State of New Hamp^rc, if required or by the signrng'Sietc Agertcy.
rONS-nturnOM dp aDREEMFNT awdTT^S. -This Agreement shall I*
constructl in eccordaice with the tow of the State of New Haaipshirc. and n
bindmg iipw Bid intrcs to the bcrtafit of ^ piMKS and their respective

and assignee Tlic captions ami contenta of the "subject*' blank tn
used only * a malto of eonvenience. and-.are not to be considered a (sit of tba
Agreonoit 'or to be used in dctermaiing the intend of the partio hereto.
■nrrgn parties ihe paities hereto do not uWend to benefit eny third parties
and this Agreement d«II not be construed to confa-any such benefit.
PN-RRE agreement. T1h» A^mcni. whirdi may be executed in a number
ofcountopaiQ. each of which shall be deemed an original, coistitutes ihc ertire
agresmoit Bid understBiding bertveen the parties, and aiperserks all prior
■grecmentt and undemtodings reiving hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS, The addiliofttl provisiorts •>« forth in Exhibit C
hereto tit tncorporated u part of this agrccmcm.

Rev. 9/2015
Subrecipieoi IhitiaKs)

Dale:

.1&
■ll/w/t'



EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. Waypoint as Subrccipicnt shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department
of Justice (DCiJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for activities involving the
implemenration of the Family Ties Inside and Out Project with the Department of
Corrections.

2. ilic Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgctcd expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditme reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within Gftccn (15) days
following the end of thp current quarterly activities; Expenditure reports submillcd.later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and.out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins, on January I. thefust quarterly
report is due on April 15''' or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrccipicnt is required.to. maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided to produce those documents upon request of this,
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall.bc maintained for at least three (3) years after the close of the

Federal Grant

4. Subrccipicnt shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DdJ.. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrccipicnt and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice
Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

.  Concord, NH 03301
603-271-8090orThomas.Kacmpfci@doj.nh.gov.
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EXHIBITS

-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in RXHIBH A.

2. The Subrecipient sh^ be reimbursed, within thirty (30) days following the DDI's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables addrcsis per the Financial Syslern of the Stale of New Hampshire.

3. The Slate's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in fonn P-37 section 1.8j

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $626,089 of the
total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approyal.to b§/30/2023, with
approv^ expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on continued fedei-al
funding and program performance..

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for my expenses o.r costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor after 09/30/2023.
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.
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EXHIBIT C

2020-IG-BX-0002

SPECUL comrnoNS

1. .Requirements of the sward; remedies For non-compliance or for materially false stateinenis

The conditions of this award arc material requirements ofthc award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient (hat relate to, conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award!

Limited Exceptions, tn certain special circumstances, llie U.S. Department ofJiistice
may dcteimmc that it will not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more rcqiiircrnents
otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions regarding cnforccmcni, including any
such exceptions madcMuring the period of pcrtoniiancc, are (or will be during the period of
I^rforinance) Ml out through tbc OfTcc of Justice Programs ("OJP") wcbpagc entitled "Legal
Notiies: Special circumstances as to particular award condiiions"
(ojp.gov/funding/Expiorc/LegalNoiiccs-AwardRcqts.htm). and mcorporaied ,by reference into
the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient
ofricial accepts all material rcquircmcnis of the award, and specifically adopts, m if
pcrsonally cxecuted by thc authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that re.latc to conduct during the period of
■performance.

Failt^ to comply with one or more award'rcquiitmenls -r whether a condition set out in full
below,-8 condition incorporated by re ference below, or an assurance or certification related to
conduct during the.award.perlod - may result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to
the recipient and the award. Among other things,.the OJP may withhold award, funds, disallow
costs, or suspend or terminalcUic award. DOJ, including OJPj also may take other legal a^ion
as appropriate.

Any materially falsc. ficlitlous, or fraudulent statement to the federal,government related to
this award .(or concealment or omission of a material fact) may bclhe subject of criminal
prose^tion (including under 18 U.S!C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.G. 10271-10273), and
also may Icj^ to imposition of civil.penalties and adminisiraiive remedies for false claims or
othciwisc (including under-31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a.requirement of this award be held to be Invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, "that provision shall fi rst be applied with a limited "construction so as to give it the maximum
effect-permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision Is utterly invalid or -
unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable.from this award. Applicability of Port 200
Uniform Requirements

2. Applicability ofPart 200 Uniform Requirements

the Uniform Admmistratiyc Rcquircmetjfe, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2
CF.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemeriied by DOJ in 2 C.F.R.. Part 2800 (together, the.
"Part 200 Uniform R£quiremcnls'') "qpply to ihisFY 2020 award from OJ?.

The Part 200 Unifonh Require,ments wcre.firsl adopted by.DOJ on December 26,2014. If
this FY 2020 awa'rd supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award
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number (C;g., funds awarded during or before December 2b 14), ihe Pon.2Ck) Unifonn
Requirements.apply witji respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the
award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental
award) that arc obligated on or after the accepuncc datc.of this FY 2020 award.

For more infoirmation and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to
OJP awards and subawards ("subgranis"), sec the OJP website at
hltps://ojp.gov/funding/Part2POUnifonnRcquifcmcnts.htm.

Record rctehliqn and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrccipienl ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain - typically for a period of 3 years from
the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention
period applies ~ and to which the recipient (and any subrccipienl ("subgrantec") at any tier)
must provide access, include pcrrormanco.mcosurcment information, in oddiiion lo the
financial records, supportihg documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records
indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

in the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared
or distributed by OJP thai may appear to conflict wiih, or differ in some way from,.the
provisions of the.:Part 200 Unlfomi Requirements, the recipient is to contact OJP promptly for
ciarificatlon.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grimts Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide arc to the DOJ Grants Finnncial Guide as
posted on the OJP wcbsitc (currently, the "DOJ OranU Financial Guide" available at
.https://ojp.B6v/flnancialguidc/DCiJ/indcx.htm), including any updated version, that may be
p^ted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees lo comply with the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide:

4. Reclassificalion of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1,2017. various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the
U.S. Code were editorially rcclassiCed (that is, mqv.ed arid renumbered) to a. hew Title 34,
entitled "Crime Coritrol and Law Enforcement" The reclassi.ficallon cnwmpasscd a
•number of statutory pipvisions pertinent (o OJP awards (that is, OJP.gra,nts and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codilled In Title 42 of the
U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1,2017, any reference In this award document to a statutory provision
that has been redasslflcd to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as. a reference to that
statutory provision as reclasslfied to Tltie 34. This rule of construction spcdflcally Includes
references set out In award conditions, references set out In material incorporated by reference
through award conditions; and references set out in olt^r award requirements.

5.' Required training for.Point of Contact and all Financial Points of Contact

Both the Point o.f Contact ̂ OC)and all Financial Points of Contact (FPOCs) for this award
must have successfully completed an "OJP fu^ciai management end grant administration
training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the award. Successful
completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2018, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the POC or aji FPOC.for Uiis award changes during the period of
performance, the new POC or FPOC must have successfully corhplcled an "OJP fmancial
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managcinent and grant administration tramlng" by 120.calendar days after t- (I ) the datc.of
OJP's approval of the "Change Grantee Contact" CAN (in the case of a new POC), or (2) the
dale the POG' enters information on the new FPOC in GMS (in the case of a new FPOC).
Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1,2018, will satisfy this
condition.

A list ofOJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial,managcrhcn,I and grant
administration training" for purposes of this condition available at
ht^s^/www.ojp.gov/traming/fints.htm. All trainings that Mtisfy this cohdilion include a
session on grant &aud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award
funds if the recipient fails to comply with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply
also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate condiilons on Uib oword.

6. Requirements related to "dc mihimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the Vdc minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to
use the "dc minimis" indirect-cost rate, must tidvise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and ils
election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Unifom
Rcquircmcnis. The "de miniinis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs
(MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

7. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently hqs other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any
other award of:federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient
promptly must determine.whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are
being, or are to be,used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost Items for which
funds are provided under this avyard. If so, the recifiiehl must promptly notify the OOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) In writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by
the DOJ awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope grant
adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any Inappropriate duplication of funding. .

Requirements related to System for Award Msnagemcnt and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must.comply with applicable itquiremcnls regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), cuircntly accessible at hnpsi/Avww.sam.gov/. This includes applicable
requirements regarding reg^tration with SAM, as well as.mainlaining Ihe currency of
information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subowards ("subgraitts")
to first-tier subrccipicnts (first-tier "subgrantecs"). Including restrictions on subawords
to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier
required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://oip.gov/funding/Explorc/SAM.hira (Award condition:
System for Award Management (SAM) and Univcrsoi Identifier Requirements), and" arc
Incorporated by reference here.
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This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural
person unrelaled.tp any buslness'or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate
in his or her name).

9. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrcciplcnl at any tier) must-

A. Ensure ihiU, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United-Slates that is or
will be funded (in wliole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient)"
properly verincs thc employment eligibility ofthe individual who is being hired, consistent
with the provisions of 8 ,U.S;C. I324a(t)(l ) and (2).

B. Notify all persons a»oeiated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be
involved in activities imder this award of both-

(!) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in '8 U.S.C. l324a(8Xl) and (2) that. geiieriBny speaking, make
it uolawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to
be notified of the award requirementfor employment eligibility verification and,of the
-associated provisions Of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) end (2).

0. As part of lhc-recordkeq)ing for Ihc award (including pursuant to ihe-Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment cligiblli^ verifications pertinent to
compliancc'willi ibis award coodllion in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention
requirements, as well'as records of all pertinent notincalions and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this
condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and.allocabie costs (if any) of actions
designed-to ensure compliance with thb condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Sta^ Involved in the hiring process

For purpose oFlhis conditioii, persons "who arc or will ihvoived in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and oil recipient (or any subrecipient)
officials or other stafT who arc or will be Involved in the hiring process with rcspcct to a
position that is or will be funded (in whole or In part) with awaid funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the. requirement dfthis condition regarding verificalion of
employment eligibility, the recipient (or any. subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and
use, E-Verify (www.e-yeriry.gov), provided an apprc^natc persoi» auihoriicd to act on
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behalf of the recipiai! (orsiibrccipicnO'uses E-Verify(and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in Ihc event of a "Tenlativc'Nonconrimiarion" or a "Final
Nonconfirmalion") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for,a position in the
United Stales that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with'awarf ftmds.

C. "United Stales" specifically includes ibe District of Columbia. Puerto Rico, Guam, the
Virgin Islands of the United Slates, and the Commonwealth of tbe Northern Mariana Islands.

Nolhihg In this coddition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipieut, any subrccipicnt at
any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal low, including"any applicable civil rights
orriondiscriminatidn law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
recipient, any subrccipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligntlbn
otherwise irnposcd by law, irtcluding 8 U.S.C. I324a(a)(l) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more Infonnaljon about C-Verify
visit the E-Vcriiy website (https-y/www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Vcrify@dhs.gov. 6-Verify employer agents can email E- Verify at E-
VcrifyEmployerAgcht@cUts.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this, condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.

10. Requirement lb report actual or imminent breach brpcrsonally identifiable infdrmalion (PII)

The recibicht (and aity "subrecrpicnt" at any tier) must-have written procedures in place to
respond in the event of an actual or imminent-Tbreacb" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a
subrccipient) - (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates,
discloses, ordisposes of "personally identifiable information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) within Ihc
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal
information system" (0MB Circular A-130). The.recipient's breach procedures must include a
requirement to repqrt actual or .imminent brach of.PIl toanQJP Program Manager no later
than 24 houm after an occurrtnce of an actual breach, or the detection of an im'minqit breach.

/

1 1. All subawards ("subgrants") must have "specific federal authorization

.  The recipient, and "any subrccipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
.applicable rcquircm.cnts for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to
Bgreeinents that •• for purposes of federal grants administrative requircmcrils — OJP
considers a "subaward" (and tlicrcforc docs not consider a,procurement "contiaa").

^  i

The details of Ihe requirement for authorization of anysubaward are posled.on the OJP web site at \
:bttps://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Subaw8rdAu'lhori2alioa.htm (Award,condition: All sutuwards
("subgrants") must.hDve specific.federal authorizatich), and are incorporated by reference here.

12. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompctitlve approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed S250,000

The recipient, and any .subrccipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements.to obtain specific advance approval lb use a noncompcliiive
approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition
Threshold (cunthlly. CSO.OOO). This condition applies to agreements that - for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements - OJP'COOsiders a procurement "contract" (and
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therefore docs not consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetltlve apprqach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted oh the OJP web site at •
https://oJp.gov/funding/Hxplore/NonconftpetitlveProcijremcnt.htrn (AwaW condition: Specific post-
award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach In a procurement contract (if contract
wo.uld exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

13. Unreasonable resrriaions on competition under the award; association with federal govemmcnl

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that
is funded (in whole or in part) by this award, whether, by the recipient or by any siibrccipicnt
at any tier, and regardless of the dollar amoual of the. purchase or acquisition, ihe'mcthod of
procurement, or the nature of any'lcgal instrumqhc.uscd. The provisions ofthis condition must
be among those included in any subaward (at any tier).

I . No discrimination, in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal govemmcnt

Consistent with (be (DOJ) Part 200 Uniforni Requlretnents - including as set out at 2 C.K.R.
•200.300 (rcqiiiring awards to be "managed] and adminlsterfedl in a manner so as to ensure
that Federal finxfing is cxpimcicd-and associated programs, are implemented in full owordancc
with U.S. stamtory and public policy requirementsO'Wid 200.319(a) (generally requiring "(a)ll
procurement transactions [to] be conducted in a manner providing full.and open competition"
and forbidding,practices "restficlive of competition," such as "(p]lacing unreasonable
requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking "[a]ny arbitrary
action in Ihc procurement process") - no fccip.icnt (or subrccipienr. at any tier) may (in any
procurement transaction) discriminate against any"pcreon or entity on the basis of such person
or entity's status as an "associate of the federal government" (or on tlic basis of such person or
entity's status as a parcni..a.fl1liate; orsubsidiaiy of such an associate), except as expressly set
out in 2 C^.F.R.
.200;3l9(o) eras specifically authorized by USDOJ.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include rrionitoringofsubrccipiem coinpllancc with this
condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program,, award funds
may be obligated for the rcasoriablc, liecessary, and allocablc costs (If any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. the term "associate of the federal govcmmenl" means any person or entity engaged or
employed (in the past.or at present) by or on behalf of the fc^l govemmcnt - as^an
employee, conirac'tOT or subcontractor (at any tier), grant recipient or -subrccipient (at any
tier), agent, or otherwise - in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on behalf of
(or in providirig goods or services to or on behalf oO die federal gtJvemmcni, and includes
•any applicant for such cmpldymciil or engagement; and aiiy person or entity committed by
legal instrument to undertake any such woik; project, or activity (or to provide-such goods or
sc^ices) in future.
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Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subredplent
ai any tier, or any person or other entity, to'violate any federal law. Including any applicable civil
rif^^ts of nondisalmlnalion law.

14. R<^uircments perUining to prohibited conduct related to (rafncking in persons (including
reporting'requirei'nents and OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipicni, and any subrecipient ("subgraotce") al any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited condiKl
related to the trafficking.'.of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgranlecs"), or Individuals defined (for purposes of this, condition) as "employees" of the
recipient .or ,of any subrecipient.

Thc.details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to" trafficking in
pereons are posted on the OJP web site at ht^sy/ojp.gov/fundingfExplore/PrdhibitedConduct-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conducfby recipient and subrecipienls related
to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJ? authority to terminate
award)), and are incorporated by reference hcie.

15. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
coiifcfchc'cs, meetings, trainings, arrd other events.

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any Her, must <»mply with all
applicable laws, regulaiioos, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost

'limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) gbycming the use of
federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as.that' tcmi' is defined by DOJ),.
including thc. provision of food, and/or bcvcragia at such conferences, and costs.of
attendance at.such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this
award appcara in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (cuirenlly, as section 3.10 of "Posiaward
Requireinchls" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide*').

16. Requlremeni for data on performance and c (Tcclivcncss under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performancc.and effectiveness
of work under this award. The data must be provided to QJ? in the rhanner (including within
the limcframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitailpii or other ppplicable written
guidance. Data collection supports compliance wilh tlic Government Performance and Rdsults

■ Act (GPRA) and the CPRA ModcrniMtion Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

17. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or (raining materials that the-recipient - or ariy subrecipient ("sub^htee'O
at any tier - develops or "delivers with OJP award funds riiustadherc to the OJP training
Guiding IVinciples for Grantees and Subgrentccs, available al
h^sy/ojp.gov/fbnding/lmplcmcntfrrainingPrinciplcsForOranteesTSubgrantees.htm.

18. Effect o.ffaiture to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding.agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) may withhold award funds, or may impose other related, requirements,, if (as
determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient docs not'satisfactorily and promptly
address outsttnding Issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform E^iiirements (or
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by the terms of this aS^rd), or other outsianduig issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Pot^tiai imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be Imposed by the DOJ
awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award. If
the recipient Is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

20. Gompliancc with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and rKindiscrimiiuition - 28 C.F.'R. Part 42

The recipient, and any suhrcclpienl (".subgrantec") at any tier, ihust comply with all applicable
•requirements of 28 - ,
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable rcquir^enls in Siibp^ E of28
C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to ah equal cmpioynicnt oppoituriity program.

21.. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rigbts and nondiscrimlhation • 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subreclpieht ("subgninlec") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28
C.F.H. Part 54, which relates to n'ondiscrimination on (he basis of-sex In certain "education
.programs."

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civll rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The'recipient, and.any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all.applicable
requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from lime to time), specifically including any
applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective
program beneficiaries.

Currently, arhong other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38" includes rules that.prohibil specific forms
'  of discruninalioii on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious

belief, or refusal to attend or'participate in a religious practice. Port 38, currently, also sets
out rules and requirements that pertain to reclpiwr and subrecipient ("subgr^tcc")
o^aniTatiohs (hat engage in or conduct cxplicilly religious activities, as well as rules and
requirancnts that pertain to recipients and subrccipients that are faith-based or religious
organizations.

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of F^eral Regulations
(currently accessible at httpsy/www.ccfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?pagc«browse),.by browsing to
Title28-Judicial Administration, Chapter I, Part 38, underc-CFR "current" data.

23. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be u^ by the
recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, cither directly or indirectiy. to
support or oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law; regulation; or
policy,'8t any level of government. Sec 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may bc-cxccplions if an
applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certab acliviiies that otherwise, would be
barred by law.)

Another fMleral law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from bcmg used.by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or Bttcmpt to
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24.

influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an oOlcial or employee
of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement,
subgrant; contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
•extending, or modifying-any such award. Sec 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law
apply, including an exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subredpient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient Is to contact
OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP,

Compliance with general appropriations>{asv restrictions on (he use of federal funds .(FY 2020)
The recipient, and any subredpient ("subgranlcc") at any liq*, must comply with all applicoble
restrictions on tlie use of federal fVinds set out in federal appropriaiions statutes. PertUicht
restrictions (hat may be set out in applicable apprt^rialions acts arc indicated af
https^/ojp.gov7funding/Explorc/FY20ApptbpriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated by
reference here, ̂ ould'a question arise as to whieiher a particular use of federal funds by a
recipient (or a subredpient) would or might fall within the scope of en appropriations-law
restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without (he
express prior written approval of OJP. -v

25. Reporting potential frauds waste, and obuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, end anysubrecipients ("subgrantccs") at any tier,-must promptly rercr to the
DOJ Office of tlic Inspector General (010) any credible evidence that a principal, employee,
agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds
under this award- (I) submitted a claim (hat violates (he False Claims Act; or (2) comroiUed
a cnminal ordv.il violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, brlbery. gretuiiy,
or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste; abuse, or misconduct involving orrclaiing to funds under this.award
should be reported to the QIC by"(l) online submission accessible via iheOIG webpageat
https://oig.ju5Hcc.gov/hotlinc/contoct-gronis.htm (select "Submit Report Online"*); (2) mail
directed to: U.S. Departmeni of Justice, Office of the-lnspector General, Investigatioos
Division, ATTN; Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC:20'530;
and/or (3) by facsimile directed to (he DOJ OIC Investigations Division (Aitn: Grantee
Rqmrtin^ at (202) 6.16-9881 (fax).

Additional information is avallabte from (he DOJ DIG website at httos://oig.lustice.gov/hdtline.

26. Restriclions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgranlcc") under (his award, or entity that receives a
procurement cobtrac.t or'subcontracl with any funds.under this award, may require any
employee dr'contractor to sign ah internal confidentiality agreement or statem.eot that
prohibits or Whcrwise restricts; or purports to prohibit or restrict, (be reportingXm accordance
with law) of-waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a
federal department or agency authorized to receive such Infonnalion.

The foregoing Is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making (his
award, to contravene requirements applicable 10 Standard Form 312 (which relates to
classified information),.Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmcnlcd information),
or any other fomt issued by a federal dcpaitmcnl or agency governing the nondisclosure of
classified information.

Subrecipient'lnltials
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I. Inacccpting'thbaward,ihcrecipient-

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently
resirict (or purport to prohibit or restricl).cmployees or contractors from reporting waste,,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies thot,.if ct.lcams or is;notificd ihat it Is or has been requiring Its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or.purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fitud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provideprpmpt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption
oO such obligations only if expressly authorired to do so by that agaKy.

-2. If the recipient docs or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgranls").
procurement contTHCts, or both--

, a. it represents ihat-

(1) it has dctcnnincd that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will
revive award funds (Nvhcther through a subaward ("subgranfO, procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either r^uires or has required intcniaJ
confidcntialiry agreements or.statemcnts from employees or contractors that currently prohibit
or otherwise'currently restrict (of pur^ft to prohibit or restrict) employees pf contractors from
reporting waste^ fraud, or abuse.as described above; and

(2) It has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
representation; and

c; It certifies that. If It learns or Is notified that any subrccipienl, contractor,;or subcontractor entity
that receives.funds under this award'ls or has been requiring Its employees or contractors to
execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrltt (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or.abusc as described above, it will Immediately stop any further
obligations ofaward funds to or by that entity, will provide, prompt whiten notirlcation to the
federal agcrtcy niaking this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such obligations only If
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Cprhpliancc with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

TIte recipient (and any subrecipicnt at any tier) must comply-wilh, and is subject to, .all applicable
provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, includitJg all applicable provisions that prohibit, under spceiftcd circumstances,
discrimination agamsl an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information
related to gross mismanagement ofa federal grant, a gross waste of federal .funds, an abuse of
authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety,
or a violation of law, rule, or regulation .related to a federal grant.

The recipient alsp.must i.nform its employees; in writing (and in^c predominant native
language pf the Avprkforcc), pf employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to Ihe applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this
award, the recipient is to contact the t>OJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for
guidance.

Subrecipicnt Initials"^^ \



28. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1,2009), iX)J eacouiages recipients and subtecipicnts
("subgranfecs") to adopt and enforcc policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing woA funded by this awardt and.to
establish workplace safely policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to
decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclosc whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-

making agency outside of DOJ If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-

making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any lime
during the course of the period of performance under this sward, the recipient must di'scloM
that fact and certain related.lnformation to OJP by email at
OJP.!ComplianccRcporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes
any status under wliicb a federal awarding agency provides additional ovcreight due to the
recipient's past performance, or other progimmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.
The recipient's disclosure must include the following: I. TTie federal awarding agency that
currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The datc the recipient was designated high risk.
3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phonc.numbcr, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
agency.

30. Tlic recipient" agrees to submit a final report at the end of this award documenting all relevant
project activities during the entire period of support under this award. This report will include
detailed information aboiit the project(s) flind^, including.jbut not liinitied to. informatipn
about bow the funds were actually used for each purpqse.area, data to support statements of
progress,, and data concerning individual results and outcomes of funded projects reflecting
project successes and impacts. The final rcport is due no later than 90 days following the close •
of this award period or the expiration of any extension periods. This report will be submitted
to the OfTlcc of Justice Programs, on-line through the Internet at https://grants.ojp:usdoj.gov/.

31. The recipient shall submit semiannual progress repbrts. Progr^ rqwrls shall be subrnitted
within 30 days after the end of the reporting periods, which are June 30 and December 31, for
the life of the award. These reports will be submitted to the Office of Justice Programs, on-line
through the Inlcmct at https://grMts.ojp.usdoj.gov/.

32. Tlie recipient agrees to report data on the grantee's OJJDP-approvcd performance measures as
part of the semi-annual categorical progress report. This data will be submitted on line at
OJJDP's Performoiicc Measures website '(https://ojjdp.gov/grMtccs/pni/index.html), by July 31
and January 31 each year for the duration of the award. Once data entry is complete, the grantee
will be able to create and download a "Performance Measures Data Report." This document is
to be included as an attachment to the grantee's narrative categorical a$sistence;progress report
submitted in CMS for each reporting period!

33. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary v
plus bonuses) to any employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the
maximum annual'salary payable to o member-of the federal govcmmenl's-Senior Executive
Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System.for. that year.
(An awajd recipient may compensate an employee, at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of'this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)
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This limiletion on conipensatton rotes ollowable under (his award may be waived on
an individual basis at the discrction of ihe.OJP cfTicial indicatud in the program
announcement under which (his award is made.

34. FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply wiih applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards
("subgranls") of S2S,000 or more.and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total
compcnsaiion of the flve rnost highly compensated executives of the recipient and ftrst-tier
subrecipicnts (finst-der "subgrantMS'O of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which dcnve fnim ̂ e Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of
2006 (FFATA), ait post^ on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/runding/Explore/FFATA.htm
(Award condiiioD.- Reporting Subawards and Executive. Compensation), ond are incorporated
"by reference here.

This condidon, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to- (1) an awaid of less
than S2S,000, or (2) an award made to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit orgaoizatlon-that he or she may own or
operate.in his or her name).

%

35. Recipient integrity, and performance matters: Requirement to report information on.
certain civil, criminal, arid administrative proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

The recipient must comply with any and al) appli^le requirements regarding rcporting.of
Information on civil, criminal, and.odministratlve proceedings corinected with (or connected
to the performance oQ eithcrjhis OJP award or any other grant, cooperative agreement, or
procurement contract from the federal government! Under certain circumstances, recipients of
OJP awards are required to repo'rt information about siich proceedings,.through the federal
System for Award Management Qcnown as "SAM"), to the descghatcd federal integriQr and
performance system (currently, "FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obli^tions regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
infomiation on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal
designated integrity and ̂ rfonnancc ̂slcm (currently, "FAPIIS") within SAM are
posted on the OJP web site at h(tps://bjp.gov/^nding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Perforrhance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to FAPIIS),
and arc Incorporated by reference here.

Subrtoiptent Inlllals
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EXHIBIT P

EEOP Reportiog

I, AUtAAa^T [responsible ojfficial], ccrtiiy that

V^IAtU P^Ta) T" [recipienf] has completed the EEO reporting tod!
cerlincatJ^

form at: httDs://oip.gQv/about/ocr/fflQ ccon.htm on ^ / f\ j fA\^ [Pale]

And that \A" A:LsrAtW7^ [responsible ojpciaf] has completed the
EEOP ^

training at https://otD.gov/about/ocr/ocr-trainine-videos/video-ocr-traininiz.htm on:

It /ift [dofe]

I further certify that:

aT" [recipienf] will cdmply
with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Signature: |rTy\\/\/x Date: W^lO

Subrecipient InitialsItials
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EXHIBIT E

Non-supplnnting Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be.the
subject of application review, as well as pro-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipierit agency staling that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or lotal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3) '
htip://www.6iD.usdoi.eov/flnancialguidc/Dart2/part2chaD3.htm.

Supplanting and lob retention

A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retainjobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be Ipst. Substantiation can be, but is not
limitcd.tOi one of thefoUowing.forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
makiag determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of Slate or local funds.

Xhc bO ^ Kl T (Applicantj.ccrlifics that any funds awaidcd

through grant number 2d20-IG-BX-0002 shdl be used to supplement existing funds for

program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated

for the purposes.and goals of iJic grant.

the U AT (Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result,in a range of penalties, including but not limited.to suspension of fiiture

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, fccbupitient of monies,

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

PrintedNmicand

S ignature: \V\
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EXHfBTT F

NEW HAMPSHTRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER I^SPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited bfelow to determine the ccrtificaiion to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which teiiahce will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
("Departmenf') determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

I. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S:C. § 1352. as implemented by .28 C.F.R. Port 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent.applicable) the following;
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have bwn paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or altempting.tp influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or. modification
ofany Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If die Applicant's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated fiinds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an cinployeC of a member, of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperativc agi:cemcnt. the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL. "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents, for oil subgranis and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
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recipients of such subgranis and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pur^ant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a),, that neither it.nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for dcbanpCTt, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded fioiTi covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

,(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application httn convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered ag^nst it. for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction orprivate agrccment or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust'statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, miaking false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or iti5 principals') prc^nt responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwse criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
^) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one; or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tiibal., or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certity to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application! Where the Applicant or any of its principals was

. convicted, within a threc-y^r period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcomplianccreporting@usdoj.gov;
for Oy W Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@u$doj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a coiporatioii, it certifies cither that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax.liability that h^ been assessed, for which all judicial and admihislralive
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is npt being paid in a timely mamier
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pursuant to an agreement with.thc authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
(2) the corporation ha$ provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or
liabilities) to the Department (for OJ?

Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancercporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to.QYW at
■OVW.GFMD@usdpj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoJ.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. TTie Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, providca drug-fiec
workplace by—

(a) Publishing'a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an oti-going drag-free aw^ness program to inform emplpyees about—

(J) The dangers of drag abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicanfs policy of maintaining a drag-free workplace;

(3).Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drag abuse violatibps pccumng In the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requuemcnt that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment imdcf the a\^d, theemplbyee will—

(1) Abide by the icrms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the cniplpyce*s conviction for a violBtion.of.a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later, than five calendar days after such conviction;

(c) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice iindcr
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice' of such conviction.
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Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including.positioo title of any such
convicted employee tp the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Dcsk..8I07th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification numbcr(s) of each affected award; .
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), witii respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate p(creonncl action against such an employee, up to and including
tcrminatibni consistent with the requii'cmcnts of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such puqDOses by a Federal, Stale, or local health, law
enforcement, pr other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintaiin a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (c), and (f).

If you arc unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

ft-f ^ /(ho
Name:and Title of Head of Agency

C,
-I I)

*  ."signature ^ Date

tibh TAaj VlAr'CHT'^Tf^/?. //JH
Name and Address of Agency
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

h William M. Gardner, Scoctiry ofStiic of tbe State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAYPOINT ia «New

Hampshire Nonproni Corpoiatioo registered to transact business in New Hampsliite on September 25. 1914.1 Airther certify (hot

ell fees end documents required by the Secretary of Slate's ofTice have been received and ia in good slai>dtng as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62S85

Ccrtificaie Niuiibcr 0004898322

SI Oft
%s

u.

O
0^

A
•s

W TBSTIMONY WHERCOP.

I hereto Ul my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of (he Stole ofNew Hompshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of .State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I _KENNETH SHELDON. Board C-hair - . do hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected OfTicef of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of ^WAYPOINT .
(Agency Name)

2.,The folJowving are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of •

the Ager>cy duly held on 12/4/18_
(Dale)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters Into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acUng through its
Department of Justice.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO.
(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the Stale and to
execute any and an documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modirrcatlons thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO
(Name of Conlract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agerrcy.

3. The forgoing resotutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 10th day of November. 2020.

Kenneth R. Sheldon. Board Chair

NH DHHS. OTTicc of OuslncM operatlona July 1.2005
Biresu of Provider Relationship Marugemeni
Certiftcaio of Vole Wilhoul Seal



yXCORO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATGpituDorrrvY)

11/10/2020

" THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A HATTER OF INFORMATIOM ONLY AND CONFERS NO R'^HTS UPON THECERTtF^^^
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POJXIES
BELOW THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOTCOHSTlTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER<S^ AUTHOFUZED
OPPRFRFNTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTinCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If Ihe ccrtiricalo holder li an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the prtic
n SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjecl to the terms and conditions of Ihs pe
this certlllcite dots not confer rights to the certlflcsts holder In liso of sue!

yfies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURfcU provBions or os eneoraou.
Icy, certain pollciss may require an endorsemenL A stslemoni on
endorssn>ent{s).

PROOUCCR

FIAI/Cross Irttursnce

1100 Etn Street

Manchester

(803)M9-32ie Ilucnw: (W3)M5-4331
antkttnOcrossagency.oom

MSUnCWhAFFOROMG COVERAOC HAtaS

PMsde^ihislnclBmnaytnsCo 180W

INSURED

WOypoint

Po Dm 44 B

Manchester NH 03105

MSURPRC- TravcloraCssusSyiSurctyCoolAmerlcs 31104

BCSUREne:

INSURCTP:

TO rPRnPV TWT THE P0UC1ES OF IHSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN tSSU&D TO THE WSWEO NAMED ABOVg FOR THE POLICY PCRKJO
COMOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCOMENTIMTH RESPECT ̂ CH THISS^lSlE^SIJ^^^SSw^Y^S^lNSORANCE AFFORDED BY T>C POUOES OESCRIBED HEREIN e SUttJK

CONDITIONS OF SUCH P0tlCIES.UMITSSH0V1NMAYHAVE BEEN REDUCED gY RAID CLAMS.
WDC70T MUeVElP

mss
LTW -rvpcoFairsuRANee rrsnmrt POUCYMUMBeR

X
coMMCRCvu. ocNeAM. UAomnr

CLMMMIABe >[3 OCCUR

oofLNxateoRTe umt apples per:
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X

ANYAUTO

CRANED
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AUTOS OW.Y

OED

X

I X RCTEmiOW I
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excess UA0

SCHCDUlfO
AUTOS
NOM-OMCO
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAMS'UAOe

WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANDEKnUJYCRS-LlAaUTT r/N

AN* RROpRieroAAumcRCXECLrn^
OrrCCRPCUOER EXCLUOEO?
(HMlMMqr M MX)
■ yp*. *—ritiitiNir
ofiowmON Of OPERATIONS NM»

S

FUdUy < Forpery

PHPK21S1S50

PKPK2l5l34t

PHU8720723
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CANCELLATION

New KampsNro Oeparlment Of Justice

33 Capital Street

ConconJ NH 03W1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ADOVE OCSCRSEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AtrTHOmzeO RfPReSCNTAT1>«

O1SeS-2016AC0ROCORPORATION. AHrlflhU reserved.

The ACORO namo and lope are roglatered markt ol ACORDAC0R025 (2C16A)3)



Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

Ohtrid

Oirador

10 M«(roT«ch C«ntor

62S Fufton Sl^ BfooWyn. NY 11201

Child & Fowily Scrvicef:
c/o Accounts Payable
y9 Hanover ."street

Mancheecer. HH 03101-2203

PwontoConlid; Patricia Holub

T.I«phoM Nufrb«^ ,7ig, ̂ 60-2333

Raf.rR«pl)rlo: EP/Ep:CSU

osu: HAY 0 d 1S97

EIN: 02-0222164

dear Sir or Madam:

Reference is made to your re<5uest for verification of the
tax exempt status of Child & Family Services.

A determination or ruling letter issued to an organisation
granting exemption under th© Internal Revenue Code remains in
effect until the tax exempt statue has been terminated, revoked
or modified.

Our records indicate that exemption was granted as shown below.'

Sincerely yours.

(d^atncta fffofa^
Patricia Hoiub

Manager. Customer
Service Unit

Name of Organisation: Child & family Services

Date of E.semc-tion Letter: November 1990

Exemption granted pursuant to section 5.01(cH3J of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Foundation Clas.sification i ii appA*'--«ui.w /.
foundation aa you are an organiZAtiOH d6SCribCd in wCCtlon
509ia)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE

CERTIFIED COPY

I, David M. Scaolan, Deputy Secretary of State oflhe State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that the attached is a true copy
of AMENDMENT(l<VI7/20l8). as a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation of WAYPOINl" previously CHILD AND FAMILY

SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE CHILDREN'S AID SOCIETY, NEW HAMPSHfRE CHILDREN'S
AID & PROTECTIVE SOCIETY as filed in this olTicc and held in the custody of the Secretary of Slate.

Business (D: 62S8S

Certificate Number 419M35

1:1

u.

Q

A
4^
3^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th day of October A.D. 2018.

David M. Scanlan

Deputy Secretary of State

Page I of 1



^tnte ai ̂efxx
Rcoofding fee;'$25.00
Um bladt print or type.

Dstc Filed: 10/17/2018 IO:IS:OOAH

{•aective Date; 11/16/2018 04 00:00 PM

Fillnsf :4I9S432 Pajes:!
Busincu ID: 62S8S

WINitm M. Cardner

Sccretsiy «f Stale

Saie of New Hatnpthtre

RSA 292:7

AFFIDAVIT OF AMENDMeNT

OF

CttUd and FamPy Sen/lcc» of New Hampshire

A NEW HAMPSHIRE NONPROFIT CORPORATION

I. William Conrod the undereigned. being the Choinnoo of im ecem ot Tnafa.
(Note 1) of the above named New Hampshire nonpreflt corporaUon, do hereby certify that a meeting was

held for the purpose of amending the articles of agreement'and the following amendm«nt(8} were

approved by e majority vote of the corporotlon's Trustees (Note 2}

The name of the Corporation chall be changed to: Vt^ypoint

Effective as of November 16. 2018.

|ir more tp»cs ti iwsdsd. sttsch •ddlllonsi •iMstfs}.]

A true record, attest

Print or type name

Title

Date signed

(Siflnsture) ^

V^Wam Conrad

Chafaman of the Board of Trustees

f A^// f

Notes: 1. Clefl(,eecrotary or other ofioor.
4

2. Entsrehher'^afd of Diredora'or Trufilacs*.

DISClAllwtER: AD documents filed with the CorporaUon DMsiort become public racords artd wto be avsltat>ie for
public inspection In eKher tangible or elearonlc form. .

Mining Addreaa - Corporation Division. NH l^ept of State. 107 N Main 61. Rm 204. Concord. KM 01301-4»88
Phyeieai Location • State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Rm 317, 2S Capitol SL Concord, NH

File a copy with Cteili ef Iha tewnfeltv of me cr|f>clPBl PlHCC gf bUSlhCPfi. Perm NP-3 (0/2015)



Borja Alvarez de Toledo, IVl.Ed.

464 Chestnut St, Manchsster, NH. 03106/ 603-782-6442

atvarozdatoiedoh^aypolntnh.org

Professional Profile

•  A'seasonadloaderwlih more than Idyearsofsenlof levelnorvpnatltmanagementoxperlence.
•  Strong business Qcumen with emphasis on developing processes to ensure the aflgnment of

etrateg/, operations, and outcomes «4th a efrenglh bas^ approach to leadership development
•  CoOaborallw leader using syslemic and strategic framewortc In program development, supervision

end conlOct resoiullon.

Professional Experience

Waypoint, fofmorly ChUd and Family Servlcea of Now Hampshlro
Manchesler. NH December 2013-Present

" Pnsldoni en d CEO

•  Responsible for program planning and deuelopnient Insuring (hat Waypoint meets the community
needs.

•  Advance the public proffie of Waypolnl by dovdoplno innovative approaches end buSdirrg productive
relatlonsh^ wtUi govoomenf, regional and naUonQl consliluenctes.

•  Ads as advisor to Ihe Board of DIredors and malnlains relationships with the regional Boards
•  Responsible for all aspects of ftnandal planning, sustabtabil^ and overnight of Waypolnfs assets.
• Work with Development slefTand Boord of Direct^ to design and bnplement alt fundralsing

actfvlUas, Including cullrvalion and solldlatjon of key Indlvfduais. fbundaflons and corporaUons

RIverefdo Community Care
Dedham, MA 2009-2013

~ PMslon Director, Child and Family Sonrlcos
•  Responslbis for strategic vision, planning and Implementoiion of the programmatic, operallona) and

llnancfal suststnablUty of a $17M division \Mth mom than 300 emptoyees.
•  In partnership wfth The GuUarvxr Center, lnc.'e board of directors, played teadershfp role In

successfully merging wUh Riverside Community Care, Qvough a process lhat involved strategic
planning, analysis and selodlon of a viablQ partner.

•  Provide supervision to managers using a strength based approach and a ooliaborativo coaching
rrxxJel to leadership development.

71)0 GuManco Coiiter, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998-2009

- Chlof Operating Officer 2007 - 2009
•  Hired tnlBa/iy as [Xroctor of an Intensive horns-based tamlty program end through successive

promoflons became responsible for all operations in (he organlzalion.
•  Responsible for supen'Islon of Division Directors, strategic piannlno and devolopmefitof new

inltlallves.

•  Developed ctratogb roiallonshlps with stats, and local flinders, end partnered wllh community
agonclea to support the heallhy growth of chlldiBn and families.

Private Practice In Psychothorapy and Clinical Consultation
iwladrld.-SpaIn 1982-1998



Unjvoreldad Poiiilflcla de Cotnillas
ModfW, Spain 1091-1898

"Afi/unct FecuUy
•  Tau^t graduate lavet courses (n Fanilty and Coupies Therapy progrom
•  PracUcum program supervisor Supervbod ftst year Master's Degree students through live

' supervision in (he treatment of multi-problem fanllles.

Contro M6dico-p6tcopedag6glco
M^rtd, Spah 1994-1997

~C//n/ca/ CoordtnatoifD/roctor of TmJnlng.
•  Member of a mulO-dlscfptlnary team that provided assessment and ireatmont (d families vlctln* of

terrorism and had devaloped Post Traisnatrc Stress Disorder.

ITAD (Instttute for Alcoliol ajid Drug TroalcnonQ,
Madrid, Spain 1991-1994

- Senior Drag and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
•  Provided evatuotron and treatment for chomloally dependent adults 'and their famOIes.
^ Senior Family Therapist, Couples and Family Thorapy Program
• WbrKed as a famBy therapist in the e\^utrik)n and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charios Rivor Health Management
Boston, MA 1089-1991

- Senior Family Therapist, Homo Based Family TTootmont Program.

Education

Graduate Certlflcate of Business

Univarsfty uf Massachusetts, LovreR, 2000.
MastcPe Degree In Education
.Counseling Pcyohotogy Program. Boston Unrverslfy, 1989.
3.A. In Cnnlcal Psychology
Unhrorsldad PonOflcia de ComlUas, Madrid, Spain. 1988

Publications

2009 Ayers.S 4 Alvarez de Totodo, 8. Community Based Mental Health with Children and Famflles. In A
R. Roberts (Ed.) .Sodol Work&f^s Dosk Refemnoo (2«» od.),New Yoric Oxford Unh/erslly Press. 2009

2006 Topical Discussion: Advbncing CommanUyBasod CUnlcal Practico and Research; Looming In Iho
Field Presented at the 1 Annual Research Confefence: A Sysletn of Care for Children's Mental
Health; Expanding the Research Base, Febroary 2006. T»npa, Ft.

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Sfc^,R; ANsrez do Totedo, 8.; Ayere, 8.; MIkula, J. How to be lltlle and still think
Creating a grass rools, avidonco based systam of cam. Symp^um presented at the 14^

Annual Research Ccnparenca In Children's Mental Health, ftesearoh and Training Center for
Children's Mental Health, February 2001, Tampa, PL

2006 Lyman, D.R.,B. Alvarez de Toledo, The Ecol^ of Infenskm community based Inlormntlon In
Lighlbum, A.. P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Cfinfcal Practico. Oxftwd UnlversUy
Press, 2006, England.

2001 Lyman. D.R, B. A^raz<ioTo)e<io{20Q^)R^skfactorsond^raQtmen^ouioomesinQ6tTQteglc
Intanshfe family progrem In Newman. .0, C. LIberlon, K. Kutash and R. Friedman. (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children's Mental He^th: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 66-68. Research
and Training Center tor Children's Mental Health, Unlvorclly of South Florida, Tampa. FL

1994-90 Research papers and professional presenfatlons in peer reviewed Journals In Spafii

Languagea

Fluent In Spanish, Ftvnch and Italian.



Core Skills:

Gina Corey Fciiante, C.P.A.

Windhara,Nri 03087

gina.ferTatite7glQutlook.com

System

Int^ration
latemal Controls

Audit

Preparation

Policies and

Procedures

Budget

Preparation and
Analysis

Streamlining

accounting

processes

Work-Expcrlencc:

Community Teamwork. Inc. 2013-2019 Lowell, Massachusetts
Director of Finance aud Accounting .

Reporting to tltc CFO, manage staff in Ihc accounting department and ccordinating
annual budget for S90 iiullion agency providing housing, WIC, Energy and Child Care
Services to low-income individuals

*  Prepare agency cost allocations
*  Ensure compliance with agency's 150 federal, state and private contracts
*  Prepare agency budgets and analyze financial results
*  Analyze and improve accounting processes and fiscal controls throughout the

agency

•  Oversees the financial uiaDagcmcnt of the organization and moiutoring of
organizatiouai performance and fiscal controls

•  Coordinate Annual Audit and review Accounting Pronouncements for
applicability

Michael P. Reillv. PC 2006-2013 Haverhill, Massachusetts

Audit Mnuflger
♦  Planned and managed the audit process for several non-public companies and not-

for-profit organizations including die Northern Essex Community College
Foundation, ARC of Northeast Haverhill and Simple Living, Inc.

• Worked with clients to help improve efficiencies and establish accounting
controls

•  Prepared tax rclums for individuals and non-public and not-for-profit corporalious



Gina Corey Fcminte, CPA. Page 2

Digital Equipment Corporation 1987-'1992 Acton, Massachusetts
Accoaoling Systems Analyst

* Designed and iostalled accounting systems &r Digital and Digital customers
Internal Auditor

* Audited departments internal to Digital in preparation for the outside auditors

EosUon Data Management 198S« 1987 Burlington, Massachusetts

Director ofAccountiug
* Managed the monthly/quarterly closing process

*  Prepared financial statements (B/S,P&D,& Cash flows)
*  Performed analytical analysis

* * Managed, supported and prepared the quarterly and year-end audit schedules

Ryder Systems. Inc. 1984-1985 Miami, Florida

Manager of Accountiug
* Managed the monthly/quarterly closing process
*  Prepared fmancial statements (B/S, P&L, Si Cash flows)
*  Performed analytical analysis

*  Prepared the quarterly and year-aid audit scbedules

Price Wfltcrhouse 1981-1984 Miami. Florida

Senior Accoautant

*  Planned, and managed the audit process for several non-public companies
including the Miami Dolphins, and area construction companies

*  Prepared tax returns for indiylduals and sinali corporations during tlic busy season

Education:

Florida International University

Masters of Science in Taxation

University of Miami

BBAAccounting

Systems: Abila Fund Accounting, Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint), Outlook,
QuickBooks, Profx



COLLEEN M. IVES

2605 Elm Streei • Manchester. New Hampshire 03104
f603^ 630-8239«clves2605@Qmall.Com

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive oxecutive with a formldabie record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimble
administrator wlh strategic planning, business process Improvement, cost controls and performance management
experience. Collaborative leader with inspirational and decisive management style who acNeves exceptional,
rather than expected, results. Catalyst for .open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

WAYPOINT, Manchester, NH • 2018-Pre&ent
Statewide private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of
community-based services.

Chief Operating Officer

• Oversees all aspects of program delivory Including; fiscal and personnel management, quality assurance and
program development

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucestor, MA • 2008-2017
Lading national lender of US .Housing & Urban Development insured commerdal loans In healthcare. mulUfamily
and affordable housing sectors.

/

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
•  Report to principals with overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through oversight of (he day-to

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transactlonai level as
well as In the development of procedures and operating practices to match RMC's continued growth.

•  Ensure RMC'S compliance with their federally mandated Quality Control Plan through employee development
initiatives, monitoring'of RMC'S operaUonal practices wtille integrating new HUD directives into RMC'S existing
best practices.

IVES DEVELOPftdENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH • 2005-2016
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership devolopmeni to public, privale and nonprofit companies
throughout New England.

Principal
(Design end facilitate customized corporate retreats, including strategic planning sessions, executive and Board of
Directors' training and development, creation or re-afflrmatlon of vision, mission and values and efforts to re-align
leadership around key priorities and future direction of the organization. Integrate opportunities to shift
organizational culture to more open and candid communications.
•  Led an 18-month comprehensive change InUiallye that:

o Resulted In the development of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
Including an operalions plan that aimed to recalibrate the culture; '

•  Transformed climate of accountability for a $55M diont by implemonling Balanced Scorecard strategic
measurement system. Designed, coordinated arid fadillated on-slle internal and extemal.anaiysis of 11 retail
locations in 9 states, analyzing threats and weaknesses in business to build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concurrent with consulting enterprise (2006 - 2010), designed and taught Introductory and upper level
psychology and sociology courses at Granite Stale Collage In Concord. Manchester and Pcrtsniculh, New Harnpshtre.

COLLEEN M. IVES • Page 2 • cives2605@gmall.com



granite state independent living, Concord, NH • 2001-2005
Slatewlde nonprofit offering long-term care, employment. Iransportatlon, advocacy, and other community-based
services.

Acting Executive Director & Ctilef Operating Officer
Led Internal operations, including service-and program deilvery, finance, human resources, fundralslng and
marketing. Transformed organization's cuiture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and
leaming that benefited the organization and Individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facliilated
business processes and controls that promoted effldency and internal information flow. Developed short- and
Icmg-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-level employees, staff of 90, and $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage In private
arxf state/federal contracts.

•  increased revenue by 78% wtlh more effective grant administration, successful applications for new
competitive grants, InlllaUng a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and increasing the fee-for-
servlce lines of business.

•  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ Individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

•  Established foundation for 36-monlh capacity building plan to enhance Infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting full organizational audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

.  Expanded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organizational .cultures and business practices, including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

•  Recommended, designed and implemented Internal controls and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance, Public Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employment Services).

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by Implementing state of
the art technology ̂ th expertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED, Concord, NH • 1992-2000
Statewide organization providing Registry of Legal Blindness. Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director

f^anaged professional staff of 8 to deliver services that Included 15 statewide rehabilitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises In Slate and Federal buildings.
.  Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services In 15 locations across the stale
•  Led Department to highest rank In standards and benchmarks among 7 other regional offices.
•  Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs into a cohesive unit.
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders In the statev\^de network of social

and human service's and employment arerias.

EDUCATION

Doctorate In Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts In Human Development

Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara. California

Master of Arts/CAGS In Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts In Psychology and Phjlosophy
Assumption College, Worcester. Massachusetts
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Melanson
aCCOUNTaHTS • AUDtTOflS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RtPOkX

121 Rivtr front Drive

Manchesler, NH 0J102

(603)669-6130
meUnsonhe>th.coin

Additional Ordces:

Nashua. NH

Aridnver. MA

To the Board of Trustees Creenf>eid. ma

WaVpoint Hi-oriUMe

.Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statement of Waypoint, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles: generally accepted in the
United States of America: this includes the design; Implementation, and maintenance of
Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements.that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America and the standards applicable to ftnanciai audits
contained In Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free froni
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements; whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments,.the auditor considers Internal control,relevant to the entity's preparation and



fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statenr^cnts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2019, and the
changes in net assets and. its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information'

We have previously audited Waypoinl's 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our
report dated rsiarch 25, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative Information
presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31,2018 is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2019 and 2018
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements andcertain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
May 26,2020 on our consideration of Waypolnt's Internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the.scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Waypolnt's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Waypolnt's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

A

May 26,2020



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2019

(with comparative totals as of December 31,2018)

2019

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash atxi cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments

Benefidai Interest held In trusts

.Property and equipment, net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Uablllties:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related llabDitles
Other liabilities

Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Deferred loans - NHHFA

Interest rate svrap agreements

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabiilties and Net Assets

Without Oooor

Restrictions

177,479

1,260,930

79.161

145,979

1,663,549

15,894,841

6.460.382

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

2018

Total

2,992,179

1,837.101

$  177,479

1,260,930

79,161

145379

1,663,549

18,887,020

1,837,101

6.460,382

$  1,078,577

714,112

60,000

.  192,744

2,045,433

16,140394

1,679391

6,358305

22,355,223 4,829,280 27,184303 24.178.490

24,018.772 S 4,829,280 $ 28,848,052 S 26,223,923

139.382 $ S 139,382 s 217.685

646,070 - 646,070 554.736

66,628 - 66,628 67,299

150,000 - 150,000 140,000

1,002,080 •
1,002,080 989,720

3,915,000 . 3,915,000 4,065,000

1,250,000 - 1,250,000 1.250,000

. 1,072,580 - 1,072,580 885,525 •

7,239,660 •
7,239,660 7,190,245

16,779,112 . 16,779,112 14,373,^
- 4.829,280 . 4,829,280 4,659,990

16,779,112 4,829,280 21,608,392 19,033,678

24,018,772 s 4,829,280 $ 28,848,052 26,223,923

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31,2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

2019

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Support:

Oovcmment grants

Contributions

lit-Und contributions

Income from spedal events, net

Revenue:

Service fees

Other

Net assets released from restriction:

Program releases

endowment releases

Endoufnent trartsfer to support operations

Total Support and Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Program services

Management and gerwral
Fundralsing

Total Operating Expenses

Changelnrtetassets before
norvoperating ItefDs

NON-OPERATING fTEMS:

Investment ItKome (loss)

Urvcallicd gain (loss) on Interest rate swap

Change In benefldal Interest

Interest Income

Endowment transfer (o sigiport operations

Total Nor)-Operatirg ttems

Charge In net assets

Net Assets. Beginning of Year, as restated (NOTE 19)'

Net Assets. End of Year

-Without Oor>er

Restrictions

5.485,443

426.8$3

87.864

487X318

5,524,270

65,971

1,194,247

74,751

627,685

13.975,102

12,086,191

1,308,438

517.402

13.912.031

63,071

2,985,010

(187,054)

1,851

(627.6851

2.172,122

2,235,193

14.543.919

16.779.112

WItft Donor

Restilctlerv

S  16,056

869,431

2019

Total

(1,194,247)

(74,751)

(383,511)

(383.511) .

335,291

157,510

552,801

169,290

4.659.990

5  4.829,280

5,502.499

1,296.284

87,864

487.018

5,524,270

65.971

627,685

13,591.591

12,086,191

1,308,438

517.402

13.912.031

(320,440)

3380,301

(187,054)

157.510

1,851

(627,685)

2.724323

2,404,483

19.203309

5  21,608,392

2018

Total

5,401,404

1.722,592

94,633

369,175

5.422,960

64,715

661,375

13.736.854

11,550.792

1,380,172

427.546

13.358.510

378,344

(1,006.030)

176,617

(188,315)

1,608

(66U75)

(1.677.295)

(1.298.9S1)

20.332,629

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31,2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Program Management 2019 ■ 2018
Services and General Fundraislne Total Total

Personnel expense:

Salaries and wages $  6,901,838 S  814,197 $  340,669 $  8,056,704 S  7,780,410
Employee benefits 886,121 84,083 24,372 994,576 827,827
Payroll related costs 861,733 72;205 27,088 961,026 834,465
Mileage reimbursement 425,994 931 199 . 427,124 445,083
Contracted services 527,006 74,153 54,573 655,732 662,720

Subtotal personnel expense 9,602,692 1,045,569 446,901 11,095,162 10,550,505

Accounting - 31,699 . 31,699 28,700
Assistance to individuals 716,800 - . 716,800 718,608
Communications 139,255 8,358 4,741 152,354 166.740
Conferences, conventions, meetings 48,489 5,949 3,600 58,038 56,018
Oepreclaticn 326,931 39,920 . 366,851 334,662

livkind contributions 88,014 - - 88,014 94,633

Insurance 65,690 9,585 2,597 77,872 74,104

Interest 251,532 67,874 •  • 319,406 317,772

Legal - 20,671 • 20,671 3,949
Membership dues 22,789 1,916 3,152 27,857 ■ 29,992
Miscellaneous^ 30,221 14,869 1,959 47,049 40,193
Occupancy 543,136 29,481 13,070 585.687 548,507

Printing and publications 29,318 2,803 29,732 61,853 •91,540
Rental and.equipment maintenance 89,746 24,229 6,542 120,517 122,782
Supplies 80,964 3,366 5,099 89,429 115,040
Travel 50.614 2,149 9 52.772 64,765

Total Functional Expenses 5  12,086,191 S  1,308,438 $  517,402 S  13,912,031 $  13,358,510

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31,2019

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Cash Rows From operating Activilies:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation

Contributions restricted for endowment

Realized (gain) loss on investments

Unrealized (gain) loss on Investments

Change In beneficial interest in trusts
Change in interest rate swap

Inclusion of r>ew entity in consolidated financial statements
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related (labilities

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) 8y Operating Activities

Cash Rows From Investing Activities:

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of Investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Rows From Financing Activities:

Contributlorw restricted for endowment

Payment of long-term debt

Net Cash Used By Rnancing Activities

Net Change In Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning .

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest paid

2019

2,404,483

3&6,8S1

(129,565)

(2,805,664)

(157,510)

187,055

20,085

(546,818)

(19,161)

46,765

(78,303)

81,334

(671)

(631,119)

(511,347)

699.950

(318,582)

(129,979)

(140,000)

(140,000)

(901,098)

1,078,577

177,479

319,406

2018

(1.298.951)

334,662

(16.717)

(136,619)

1,688,070

188,315

(176,817)

170,636

(20,000)

48,802

122,018

(101,766)

(1.763)

799,870

(693,481)

631,845

(426,805)

(488,441)

16,717

(140,000)

(123,283)

188,146

890,431

1,078,577

317,772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WAYPOINT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2019

1. Organization

Waypoint (the Organization) Is a nonprofit organization, founded In 1850, that
currently, aids more than 20,000 Individuals, statewide, through an array of social
services.

These services span the life cyde from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped Into the
following categories:

Early Childhood- Family Support & Education Services
Over 4,500 parents received education and support to improve parenting, strengthen
families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy development of
children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disadvantage received critical
services to ensure a good beginning and to optimize their chance for life-long success.
Some of the programs focused on early childhood Include:

Early Support and Services - Early Support and Services provides family-centered
support and therapies to infants and toddlers who have developmental
disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental delays. Services work to,
optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emotional and social development, and
chance for success. Services are provided In the child's natural environment
(home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services - A number of different prevention programs are offered
In the home during those critical early years of a child's life. A spectrum of services

.  Includes support to new mothers and those struggling to parent; services for
children with chronic health conditions; prenatal services for babies being born at
a disadvantage Into low-Income families; and programs to encourage positive
early parent/child relationships and promote optimal early chiidhood devel
opment. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, developmental
specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home visitors.

Adoption - A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been forming
families through adoption since 1914. The Organization's adoption professionals
provide home studies and adoption services for families looking to adopt and
provide counselling and support to birthparents who are considering the adoption
option.



Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal government,
and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for children, adolescents
and young adults. Programs are delivered in the home, schools, or community, and
Include mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment, as well as a
complex system of family stabilization and preservation programs, child protection
services, and services for at»risk youth. Some of the programs Include:

Foster care - The Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in placing
children who have been rescued from dangerous home environments, into safe,
stable, loving homes. The Organization recruits and supports foster families and
works to facilitate permanency for each child.

Home Based Services - The Organization has a number of programs provided in the
family home that are designed to help families who are struggling through daily
life - where children are at risk. Services work to thwart domestic violence, rebuild
families, and to improve family functioning. The Organization empowers families
with the skills and resources they need to provide for their children and become
self-sufficient.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services
The Organization Is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless youth In
Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services features outreach to at-risk
youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-
in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational and vocational advocacy, housing,
and case management. The Organization also provides behavioral health and
substance use counseling where needed. The Organization worlcs with school systems,
police, and other agencies In addressing the needs of New Hampshire's homeless
youth.

Senior Care and Independent Living

The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disability to live
at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Under the title of Home
Care, services are delivered by homemakers, companions, personal care service
providers, and INAs. The Organization's caregivers go to client homes to help with
everything from cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders,
mobility, travel to appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and
communication with family members.

Other Programs

Camp Spaulding - Since 1921, Camp Spauiding has helped campers from all types
■  of backgrounds enjoy the benefits of a traditional, resident camp experience. In

2015, the Organization formed a partnership with the YMCA of Greater Nashua
whereby the Organization will own the camp and the YMCA will handle dally



operations and summer programming. This collaboration will combine a 96-vear
camp history, an exceptional facility, strong community support, and the expertise
of two premier New Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

)

The New Hampshire ChUdren's Lobby - Established In 1971, the New Hampshire
Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of Child and Family Services. The program's
mission Is to Improve the lives of children and families through legislative, judicial,
and public policy initiatives. This combination of advocacy and direct service
practice uniquely positions the Organization to serve the best Interest of New
Hampshire children.

The Children's Place and Parent Education Center - The Children's Place and

Parent Education Center (TCP) in Concord, NH is a 501(c)(3) organization
incorporated In 1978 to provide both educational and social programs and
services to strengthen and enrich the lives of families with children, two mohths
through six years old.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Change In Accounting Principle

ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and 2018-08 Contributions
Received and Contributions Made

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09 - Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), as amended, and ASU No. 2018-08 Not-for-
Profit Entities: Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received
and Contributions Made pbpic 605), as management believes these standards improve
the usefulness and uhderstandability of the Organization's financial reporting.

ASU 2014-09 and 2018-08 have been implemented in 2019, and the presentation in these
consolidated financial statements has been adjusted accordingly. Analysis of various

provisions of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Organization
recognizes revenue, and therefore no changes to the previously issued audited consolidated
financial statements (presented in these consolidated financial statements as comparative
financial Information) were required on a retrospective basis. The presentation and
disclosures of revenue have been enharKed in accordance with the new standards.

ASU 2016-01 Equity Investments

In 2019, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtoplc 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which relates

• to the accounting for equity Investments, financial liabilities under the fair value option,
and the presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments.
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Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Include Waypoint,, Child and Family Realty
Corporation, and The Children's Place and Parent Education Center, commonly
controlled organizations. All inter-organization transactions have been eliminated.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information In total, but not by net asset class. Such
Information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation In

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such Information should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,2018, from which
the summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial Instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term
purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid
financial instruments invested for long-term purposes, Including endowments that
are perpetual In nature, are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of nonlnlerest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable Is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be
collected in future years are Initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts Is included In contribution revenue In the Consolidated
Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions Is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Contributions receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable. Management has determined that contributions receivable are fully
collectable, therefore no allowance has been recorded.

11



Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values In the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Net Investment retum/{loss) is reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend Income,
realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its restricted
endowment. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the Individual
endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each endowment to

the total market value of the pooled Investment accounts, as adjusted for additions
to or deductions from those accounts.

Beneftdai Interest Held In Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial
interest In trusts is reported at Its fair value, which Is estimated as the fair value of the
underlying trust assets. Distributions of income from trust assets are restricted as to
use and are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended
in accordance with restrictions. The value of the beneficial Interest in the trusts Is
adjusted annually for the change in Its estimated fair value. Those changes in value
are reported as Increases In net assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the trusts
will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, If purchased, and
at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation Is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser
of the useful life of the asset or the tease term. When assets are sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related depreciation Is removed, ar)d any resulting gain or
loss Is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and
repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed. Assets not In service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may

not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its
use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were
no indicators of asset impairment In 2019 or 2018.
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Interest-Hate Swap

An interest-rate swap Is utilized to mitigate Interest-rate risk on bonds payable. The
related iiabliity Is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor or grantor-Imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The Board
has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for a board-
designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain
grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual In nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity while
permitting the Organization to expend the income generated by the assets In
accordance with the provisions of additional donor-imposed stipulations or a
Board.approved spending policy. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fuifilied, or
botii.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Oiganization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received.
Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met. The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair
value of direct benefits to donors, and contribution income for the excess received when
the event takes place.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenditur;es in compliance with specific contract or
grant provisions. Amounts received prior to Incurring qualifying expendituresare reported
as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Revenues derived from providing program services, Including facility rentals, are
recognized as the services are prodded. Revenue related to facility rentals is recognized
when the performance obligation of providing the space is satisfied. Program services fees
paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they relate. All other amounts paid in
advance are deferred to the period in which.the underlying event or rental takes place.
Due to the nature and timing of the performance and/or .transfer of services, certain
contract liabilities at December 31 of each year are recognized in the following year.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services,

administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the
consolidated financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed

services because they do not meet recognition^criteria prescribed by Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair
values of the services received.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as Incurred and are reported In the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated

Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes In net assets, including
changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities
consist of those Items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and
services and include the Organization's annual endowment transfer to support
operations. Non-operating activities are limited to resources outside of those
programs and services and are comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales
and dispositions, investment Income, changes In the value of beneficial Interests and
interest rate swaps.

Income Taxes

Waypoint and the Children's Place and Parent Education Center have been recognized
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section
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501(c}(3|. qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined
not to be private foundations. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from
federal Income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described In Section 501{c)(25).

Each entity is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, each is subject to Income tax on net income
that Is derived from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purpose. In
2019 and 2018, Waypoint was not subject to unrelated business income tax and did
not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the
IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and^assumptlons that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may
differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material.

Financial instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
Institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced In any of these accounts.
Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receivable Is considered to be
limited due to high historical collection rates. Investments are exposed to various risks
such as Interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the
values of Investment securities will occur in the near term and that such change could
materially affectithe amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Although the fair values.of Investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-
to-year basis, the Investment Committee believes that the investment policies and
guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction In the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Inputs'used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
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that reflect the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the asset or
liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting
entity. Unobservable inputs are iriputs that reflect the reporting entity's own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the asset
or liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes
the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for Identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the.asset or liability, and
market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 ~ Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best Information available in the
circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assetor a liability might
be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 Inputs because
they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level 1
inputs are not available for certain assets and liabilities that the Organization is
required to measure at fair value (for example, unconditional contributions receivable
and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of Investment assets and
unconditional promises to give.

•  Recurring measurement of endowment Investments (Note 6)-Levell.

•  Recurring measurement of beneficial interests In trusts (Note 7) - Level 3.
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•  Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 9) - level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of bonds payable and Interest rate swap (Note 10) -
Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of deferred loans (Note 11) - Level 2.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and. contributions
receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll and related liabilities,
and other liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted In the Future .

Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02,
Leases. The ASU requires all leases with lease terms more than 12 months to be
capitalized as a right of use asset and lease liability on the Statement of Financial
Position at the date of lease commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance

leases or operating leases. This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of expense
recognition in the Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the
Organization for the year ending December 31,2021. The Organization Is currently iri
the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that Is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the dale of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at December 31,2019:

Rnandal asseu at year end:

. Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Contributions receivable

Irrvestmenls

Beneficial Interest held in busts

Total firsancial assets

177,479

1,260,930

79.161

18,887,020

1.837,101

22,241,691

Less amounts not available to be used within one year

Net assets with donor restrictions 4,829,280
Less:

Net assets with purpose restricUoru to be met in less than a year (538,689)
Dorwr-resirkted endowment subject to spending policy rate (4.00)()
and appropriation (98,140)

Board-dcsljfuted endowment 15,894,841
Less: Board^sisnated erviowmcnt artnual spendim

policy rale (4.00N) (563,860)

Less total amounts not available to be used within one year

rirunciai assets available to meet (eneril expenditures

over tttc next year

4,192,451

IS.330,981

19,523,432

2,718,259

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by

the Board to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is

restricted for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetual
in nature are not available for general expenditure.

Board-designated endowment is subject to an annual spending rate as determined by
the Board. Although there is no Intention to spend from board-designated
endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the
Board's annual budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could be made
available if necessary.

As part of Its liquidity management plan, the Organl2ation also has a $1,500,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following at December 31,2019 and 2018:

• 2013 20ia

Receivable Allowdnce ' Receivable Allowance CiSl

Grants recetvsbie S  678,S02 S  ■ 5 678,502 S  379,362 S s 379,362

Fees for sendee 584.728 (2,300) S82.428 338,650 13.900) 334.750

Totel S  1.263,230 S  (2,300) S 1,260,330 S  718,012 S  (3.900) s 714,112

5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid Insurance and contracts.

6. Investments

Investments at fair value consist of mutual funds totaling $18,887,020 and
$16,140,394 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. During 2019, the
Organization recognized $2,935,229 of net gains and losses on-investments. Of that
amount, $2,935,229 was recognized on investments of equity securities held at
December 31, 2019.

Under the terms of the Organization's Hrie of credit agreement (Note 9), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these Investments as security on any other
debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
Investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends,, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees for
.2019 was 4.25% of the average fair market value of all investments over the previous
twelve quarters.

As discussed In Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organization is

required to report Its fair value measurements In one of three levels, which are based
on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization's valuation
techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of Inputs, Is for Investments measured
at quoted prices in active markets for identical investments as of the December 31,
2019. Level 2 is for Investments measured using Inputs such as quoted prices for
similar assets, quoted prices for the identical asset in inactive markets, and for
Investments measured at net asset value that can be redeemed in the near term. Level

3 Is for Investments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in
situations for which there Is little, if any, market activity for the investment.
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The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of Its
investments:

Mufyo//unds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which Is the basis for transactions at that date.

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization Is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered by the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is to provide
assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital improvements to the
camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions from the furtds can be made at
the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At Decernber 31, 2019 and 2018, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$858,994 and $800,624, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts.
The assets are held In trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value
of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the Organization's percentage

interest to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage

Trust Interest 2019 2018

Greenleaf 100% $ 384,004 $ 350,806

Spaulding 100% 332,956 297,837

Cogswell 50% 261,147 230,324

Total $ 978,107 $ 878,967

Beneficial interest held in trusts is reported at fair value, which is estimated as the
present value of expected future cash Inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed In
Note 2, the valuation technique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because
there are no observable ntarket transactions.
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8. Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

Property and equipment Is comprised of the following at December 31, 2019 and
2018;

2019 2018

Land and land Improvements $ 1,114,949 $ 1,114,949
Buildings and Improvements 8,862,063 8,335,089
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 843,251 796,686

Vehicles 107,581 107,581

Software 377,333 285,372

Construction in progress 5,415 38,870

Subtotal 11,310,592 10,678,547

Less accumulated depreciation (4,850,210) (4,320,042)

Total $ 6,460.382 $ 6.358,505

9. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank. The
line of credit expired on June 30,2019 and was extended through June 30,2020. The
line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable, double negative pledge on all

■  investments of the borrower, and carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall Street
Joumal prime rate (4.75% at December 31, 2019), adjusted daily. At December 31,
2019, the balance on this line of credit was $529.

10. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the
"Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services Issue,
Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund its
Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain improvements to the Organization's
facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable Interest rate determined
on a weekly basis. Prior-to issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered Into an interest
rate swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counter
party") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the
Series 2007 Bonds. The Interest rate swap agreement requires the Organization to pay
the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Co.unterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one month
LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to offset
Organization payrnents of variable rate Interest to bond holders. Counterparty credit
worthiness and market variability can impact the variable rates received and paid by
the Organization, with the potential of Increasing Organization interest payments. As
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a result, the cost of the Interest rate swap for 2019 and 2018 Is added to interest
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap In the Consolidated.
Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the
swap In the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, during the bond's 30-
year holding period, the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an
asset if interest rates Increase above those In effect on the date of the swap was
entered Into (and as an unrealized gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities),
which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on
the swap Is below market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the
swap. The swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect on the
date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that the net fixed
rate the Organization is paying oh the swap is above market expectations of rates
during the remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value
changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition requirements, the net
effect of which will be zero at the end of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31,
2019 and 2018, the Organization recorded the swap liability position of $1,072,580
and $885,525, respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit
rating of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which
triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds In whole and a temporary
conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase mode
under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it became

evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the Organization

elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase

mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which the Series 2007
Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum of the
adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank purchase mode
commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014; however, the expiration
date was extended by the Counterparty and the Organization had the option to
convert back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond documents require the
Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As of December 31, 2019,
the Organization was in compliance with these covenants.
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The following Is a summafv of future payments on the previously mentioned bonds
payable:

Year Amount

2020 S 150,000

2021 160,000

2022 165,000

2023 175,000

2024 180,000

Thereafter 3,235,000

Total $ 4,065,000

11. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated June 7,
2005. The face amount of the note Is $550,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due In 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located In Dover,
New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated May 22,
2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the payment of
Interest, and Is due In 30 years. The note Is secured by real estate located In
Manchester, New Harhpshlre.

12. Endowment Funds

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds established for a
. variety of purposes. Endowment Includes both donor-restricted funds and funds
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets associated with endowment
funds, Including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Board-designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2019, the Board of Trustees had designated $15,894,841 of net
assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment fund to support the mission
of the Organization.
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Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the

.fair value of the original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetual
^endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
'this interpretation, the Organization classifies as perpetually restricted net assets
(a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment made
in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift Instrument at the time
the accumulation Is added. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment
fund that is not classified as perpetually restricted is classified as net assets with donor
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure t)y the Organization
in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accor
dance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-
restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect
of Inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total returfi from income and the
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization, and (7) the
Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less
than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to
the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in
perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The
Organization complies with UPMIFA and has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending
from underwater funds in accordance with prudent measures required under the law.
The Organization had no underwater endowment funds at December 31, 2019.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principal
of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for current
Operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund In support of current
operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of the total fund, adjusted for
new gifts to the fund.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is
sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are
cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through Investment styles.
Asset allocation parameters have been developed for various funds within the
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structure, based on Investment objectives, liquidity needs, and time horizon for
Intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed
on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. Total return is
defined as dividend" or interest income plus realized and unrealized capital
appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

The Organization's spending policy rate in 2019 was 4.25% of the average total
endowment value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This
includes interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2019 and
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31. 2019 are as
follows:
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13. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restriction are comprised of the following at December 31,

2018

Undesignated net assets ^ aw.z/j. $
Board designated endowment

Total $ 16,779,112

2019

S  884,271

15,894.841

366.244

14,007,444

S 14,373,688
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Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at December 31.
2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Camp

Child abuse prevention

Familv counseling'
Family msource center

Homecare

Human trafficking

rr and other projects

Teen and youth

Endowment:

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:

General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Original gift restricted by donors for
General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Total restricted endowment

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:
Beneficial interest In trusts

Total

71,265 $ 113.699
98,265

9,398

34,569

111,587

10,000

108.522

95,083

538,689

176,893

198,902

398,289

774,084

133,407

548.988

997,011

1.679.406

2.453,490

1.837.101

153.836

14.160

92.430

30.000

208,891

234,433

847,449

131,716

■ 92,896

228,932

453,544

133,407

548,988

997,011

1,679,406

2,132,950

1.679.591

$  4.829,280 $ 4.659.990
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified
by the donors as follows for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:

Camp 5 119,417
Child abuse prevention 150,071
Family counseling 41,834
Family resource center 2,211
Homecare 295,499
Human trafficking 50,000
IT and other projects 312,866
Teen and youth 222,349

. 1,194,247

Restricted-purpose spending-rate

distributions and appropriations:

General operations 11,268
Camp operations 27,789
Other purposes ^5,694

74,751

Total S 1.268.998

14. Assistance to Individuals

The $716,800 in "Assistance to individuals" (see Consolidated Statement of Functional
Expenses) Is comprised of the following (rounded to the nearest thousand):

Payment to parents of foster children $ 302
Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness 144
Gift cards provided to families during holiday season 59
Food for at risk youth 25

Other assistance such as medical, childcare,

transportation, and family activities

Total

15. Functionalized Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
'  attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses
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require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated Include clerical, IT, and administration, which are allocated to program
and supporting services based primarily on a percentage of personnel costs related to
programs and supporting services.

16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined
contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately make elective
participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution Is permitted
by employees up to limits Imposed by the Internal Revenue Code and other limitations
specified in the Plan. There were no contributions made to the plan by the
Organization for the years ended December 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

17. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms of nononcellable lease agree
ments that expired at various times during 2019. The Organization also rents
additional facilities on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these agreements
totaled $182,763 and $182,368 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

18. Related Party Transactions

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm that
employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of Directors. The
attorney board member does not personally perform the legal services. For the year
ended December 31,2019, the total legal expense from related parties was $15,680.

19. Prior Period Restatement

Beginning net assets for 2019 have been increased by $170,231 to include the assets,
liabilities, and net assets of The Children's Place and Parent Education Center, which
is now included In these consolidated financial statements. On November 1, 2019
Waypotnfs Board of Directors took over responsibility for this organization. The
comparative totals that are presented with these consolidated financial statements
have not been restated.

20. Concentration of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the State of
New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate resources via grants is
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dependent upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire.
An economic downturn could cause a decrease In grants that coincides with an
Increase In demand for the Organization's services.

21. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 26, 2020, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be Isisued.

The COVIO-19 outbreak In the United States (and across the globe) has resulted In
economic uncertainties. The disruption is expected to be temporary, but there Is
considerable uncertainty around the duration and scope. The extent of the Impact of
COVID-19 on our operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, Including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on our
individuals sen/ed, employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be
predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may Impact our financial
condition or result's of operations is uncertain. In response to the impact that COVID-
19 has had on our Organization, a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP| Loan was
applied for, and $1,741,500 received on April 24,2020.
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